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SENATOR MARTHA ESCUTIA, CHAIR:  Members, ladies and gentlemen, thank you very much for joining us today.  Today’s joint hearing will review what the Hospital Association believes to be the most serious challenge facing their medical community today.  Previous Legislatures have recognized California’s unique earthquake problem and have very appropriately required our hospitals to meet a higher standard of seismic safety than other buildings.  The reasoning behind these higher standards is that any major quake will injure large numbers of our residents, and we have a very serious obligation to assure those injured people that they have the access to necessary medical care.  

However, every time the Legislature intervenes in mandating standards, these type of standards will have an impact on different hospitals in different ways depending on what the status of the hospital is.  Many of our hospitals are financial strapped.  Many hospitals, especially those with an aging plant, shrinking revenues, or a disproportionate number of public patients, and perhaps might be sited near an earthquake fault line, will definitely be at risk of closure.  So as policymakers, we need to consider it as appropriate policy for the state to intervene in such circumstances.  We need to consider if state assistance is warranted, if such assistance could be targeted and prioritized, and whether we should grant hospitals additional time, or other considerations to comply with these demanding and necessary seismic standards.  

I hope that today we will hear testimony on the scale, nature, and cost of seismic compliance.  I am also seeking suggestions on any legislative response that the witnesses believe would be helpful to our mission.  The Hospital Association has suggested several proposals to assist hospitals, and I invite each witness to comment on these ideas.  But I hope that we will leave this hearing with a better grasp of the problems of implementing hospital seismic safety.  But at the same time, I hope that we can identify common ground in order to move forward with regard to the issue of the safety of our patients, and the seismic viability of our hospitals.  It’s an issue that, unfortunately, tends to only come up when legislators are faced with it.  Obviously, the health committee members as well as the chairs are obviously interested in it because it’s a very critical issue.  We hope that this hearing will shed light on the problems, and therefore we start developing a critical mass of legislative interest as to how best to address this problem.  

I would like to welcome my colleague and chair of the Assembly Health Committee, Assemblyman Gallegos, who has so graciously joined me in this effort to jointly, as a bicameral Legislature, address this problem.  Thank you.

Chairman Gallegos.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER MARTIN GALLEGOS, CHAIR:  Thank you, Madame Chair.  I first want to thank everyone who’s here today for coming to this hearing, for recognizing the importance of this issue that we’re trying to deal with today.  I want, also, to thank Senator Escutia for her leadership for agreeing to hold this hearing jointly with the Assembly Health Committee. And I will just echo a lot of what she has already said in terms of eagerly awaiting the input of the testimony that we’re going to have from the witnesses today.  It’s going to be very valuable in helping the Legislature move forward in trying to deal with some of the issues that have come about from the implementation of the passage of SB 1953.

We all know while it was well-intentioned and certainly we all agree that Californians deserve the highest quality of healthcare in a safe environment, what has come about as a result, as everyone here knows, was some unintended consequences which really were not the original intent of the bill.  The bill didn’t set out to shut down hospitals and to negatively impact our healthcare delivery system.  But clearly from the early figures that we’ve been seeing over the last several years, the cost of implementation of the provisions of 1953 are quite staggering.  And I think that we need to look at ways to deal with those issues.  So through this hearing today, I hope that we’ve going to hear from hospitals and hospital workers on how we can insure that hospitals are indeed safe for providing the vital services that are necessary as well as for taking care of emergencies, particularly in the event of a natural disaster and specifically following an earthquake.

In this booming economy, we’ve heard a lot of talk about looking into California’s long-term infrastructure needs and investing in those.  Our healthcare system, I think, needs to be a part of that discussion on the future of our infrastructure.  And what part of that infrastructure could be more important than protecting the public’s health and safety.  As many of you know, there have been some proposals floating around, some that I am looking at as possibly introducing as legislation to help hospitals meet the requirements under 1953.  And I certainly look forward to working with my colleagues in the Senate as we proceed forward trying to address this very serious problem in California.

And with that again, Senator, thank you very much for having this hearing, for allowing me to be here today.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Chairman Gallegos.  We have other members present from the Assembly Health Committee.  If you would like to make some comments, feel free.

Hearing none, we should proceed then with--

ASSEMBLYMEMBER CHARLENE ZETTEL:  Thank you for taking the time to call this meeting, obviously, for San Diego and my constituency.  I hear calls all the time on this issue.  So thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you very much, Assemblywoman Zettel.

The discussion will be divided into four panels, and in total we have eight witnesses.  So when the witnesses do come forward, I would like the witnesses to stay here at the table, just in case the members might have questions.  So our first panel will discuss the statewide hospital perspective.  And we have Duane Dauner, President of California Healthcare Association, Mark Harrison, Director of Shattuck, Hammond Partners, and Kurt Schaefer, Deputy Director of the Office of Statewide Health Planning.  Please come forward to the table.

We’ll start with Mr. Dauner:

MR. C. DUANE DAUNER:  Thank you, Senator.  Good afternoon.  I would first of all like to echo Mr. Gallegos’ comments.  We appreciate the leadership that you are exerting on this subject, and that Mr. Gallegos has given in the past.  This is a very important issue, and if we looked at the two most pressing matters facing hospitals in this state, one of them is SB 1953, and the second one is the overall financial stress that we have to deal with.

As you know, I am the Chief Executive Officer of the California Healthcare Association here representing all of the hospitals and all of the constituent groups of the entire hospital community.  Attached to the testimony that is before you is a list of all of the organizations that are part of this effort and have endorsed this statement as well as the recommendations that we’re going to present to you today.

We have always been supportive of hospital facilities that are safe for patients, for employees, for visitors, and for others.  And we are still committed to that goal to make sure that hospital facilities throughout the entire state are safe in all regards.  Secondly, we were an early supporter of the compromise that Senator Alquist put together, finally known as SB 1953, that was passed in 1994.  And we still support that law and the goals of

SB 1953.

We learn more every month about the implications of that law.  And in 1994, we did not understand much of what we do today, and particularly with respect to cost with respect to the condition of hospitals, what buildings complied, what buildings were out of compliance, how far.  We just didn’t know what we didn’t know at the time.  But the decisions relative to SB 1953 were made on the best information that was available at the time.  And so now as information does surface, we will have to deal with it, and that’s why we are here before you today.

When SB 1953 was enacted, we saw the implementation through the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development in cooperation with the Department of Health Services.  And I would say that Dr. Wardigar(?), Kurt Schaefer, and the Office have been most cooperative.  They are helpful to our members and willing to work in the best possible way to achieve compliance with this Act.  Several milestones are outlined in compliance with SB 1953.  The first one is at the end of this year, or by January 1, when all hospitals have to submit evaluations of their facilities as well as a plan of compliance.  And at that point, we will know what the circumstances are.  We have a good idea, and a better idea all the time, but we will know for sure by January 1 of next year.

Secondly, by January 1, 2002, the structural performance category standards and non-structural performance categories have to be met in certain instances.  Bracing of essential systems, for example, has to be done by January 1, 2002.  By 2008, which is the first big date you’ve probably heard, at that point in time, we have a standard established that buildings cannot collapse.  But they would not necessarily remain operational in the case of a major earthquake.  By 2030, then substantial compliance is the standard for all buildings.  They would not only remain standing, but they would remain operational in a major earthquake.  Originally, we thought that the cost of SB 1953 in total would be around $14 billion, but today we believe the cost is closer to $24 billion.  And to put that into perspective, that’s as much, it’s actually more, than we have invested in hospital facilities today in assets.  That’s the magnitude of--

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Let me stop you right there.  Twenty-four billion dollars to get to the compliance of--

MR. DAUNER:  2030.

We have a major challenge here to deal with.  And I think that others will talk about the financial position of California hospitals.  But I think we all know that the Medicare reductions, the managed care pressures, the uninsured, and Medical payments have produced an environment which makes it very difficult, and in many cases impossible, for a hospital to have the funds to replace itself if it is in non-compliance.  

There are a lot of reasons that the higher-then-expected costs occurred, and I’m not going to go through those in depth.  They are listed for you on Page 2 of the written testimony.  But most of the pre-1973 constructed buildings in this state are not in compliance.  And the first real standards became effective in 1973 following the 1971 Sylmar earthquake.  And by the way, that’s the last time that there was a death in a California hospital due to an earthquake and that was in a federal hospital located in the area of the earthquake.

The hospitals overall--about 60 percent of them--have a negative operating margin.  That is, the revenue that they get from patients doesn’t cover their costs.  And many hospitals will have some other sources of income like interest or grants or bequeaths, or contributions.  And in a very few instances, there are some public hospitals that get a small amount of tax money.  But by and large, of those 60 percent that have negative operating margins, two thirds of them get back even.  But we still have a large number of hospitals that even after all those sources of income are still operating in the red.  And that sort of sets the stage for how financing could be done.  Most hospitals have had a downgrade in their bonds in this state.  Insurance is very difficult to get on bonds, and the cost, obviously, goes up every time that occurs.

Mr. Gallegos referred to the unintended consequences.  And these were simply because we didn’t know what we didn’t know at the time.  And as we look at those unintended consequences, we have to say what can we do to sort of mitigate them in order to achieve the goal?  That is get full compliance, substantial compliance with the law, provide safe facilities for patients, employees, and visitors, and do it in such a way that we can afford it.  That there is money available to cover this horrendous cost that is facing us.

We are proposing several steps for your consideration that are initial steps in this process.  We will learn more in this year, especially after all the reports of the hospitals are in.  And we will come back to you in the future.  I hope you don’t feel this is going to be something every year for the next ten years.  But certainly for the next few years as information becomes known, there will be a need to deal with those issues. 

With respect to finances in a preliminary way.  We believe that the California Health Facilities Financing Authority and Cal Mortgage can play a position role in helping us become compliant with SB 1953.  Tax policies for investor-owned facilities also can play an important part in helping cover part of the cost.  At the federal level, HUD does have a program available.  We’re trying to get that modified to make it more responsive to seismic safety projects, and we are also looking at some other options at the federal level to help us in that regard.

We propose that SB 1953 be amended to include a provision that hospital owners provide cost estimates at the time that they submit their compliance plans.  Now, why would we do that?  Well, first of all, we believe that we need the dollar numbers so that you can understand truly the financial magnitude of this challenge.  But there’s a caveat here that’s very important.  If a hospital does submit the financial information, they are subject not only to criticism but also to potential loss, major loss.  For example, if it’s a company that is stock-owned, and the value of the stock goes down simply because those numbers become know, stockholders could sue and say that this was an artificial act which lowered their value.  And it clearly would have an impact.

For not-for-profit hospitals, if there’s a competing institution two blocks away, and one of them is compliant; and one of them is not; and one of them is going to have $100 million bill to fix the hospital or rebuild it; and other one has a $2 million obligation, there’s going to be a problem there within that community, and it would shift patients unnecessarily.  So we believe that confidentiality is very important, and that information has to be protected after it is submitted to the state.

Secondly, there are seismic zones developed by the federal government.  A map is attached to our testimony outlining Zones 3 and 4.  And you can see that much of the state down the coast is zoned 4, and then there are some area in the valleys that are Zone 3.  Zone 3, the probability is less that there will be an earthquake, especially one of any magnitude that would cause major damage.  And while that’s not ironclad, it is certainly based on the scientific information that is available.

Hospitals are not located in just one building.  In many cases there are two, or three, or four or half a dozen or more buildings.  We believe it is important for hospitals that are going to rebuild or totally construct a new facility to have some flexibility between 2008 and 2013 to construct that entirely new facility.  And in order for that to happen, we would recommend that the 2008 deadline in those circumstances be extended to 2013.  It’s going to take several years for the hospitals to get approval of their plans to get the financing and all the other things we’ve talked about in order.  And if they’re under construction, that is if it’s clearly going to happen, then we recommend that the 2008 deadline for those facilities in that institution be extended to 2013.

Further with respect to seismic Zone 3, we believe that the changes being made--actually in Zones 3 and 4 by OSHPD--are extremely helpful.  Last year, Mr. Gallegos authored a bill that allowed for some flexibility on the timing for the adoption of regulations and yesterday the Hospital Building Safety Board, on the recommendation of OSHPD, did approve some recommendations that are very significant and those will go before the final body on Friday of this week.  So in response to the bill that Mr. Gallegos authored, some positive steps are being taken, and we deeply appreciate those.

There are critical service areas in a hospital like surgery, emergency department, lab, radiology, and central supply.  Clearly those have to be protected 24-hours a day.  But there are other areas of the hospital which do not fall in that category, and we believe that the retrofitting and the construction of these new critical areas needs to be accommodated as we move forward.  And it’s very difficult, for example, in surgery to set out surgery and do it in a stage by itself.  Because it is so integral with the other parts of the hospital.  One of our difficulties is that hospitals over the years have been built in yearly stages.  The original building might have been 1950.  Then there was an addition in 1968, and then another one in 1981.  They’re all across the map on how they comply.  And some part of the hospital will be in compliance, other parts of that same institution will not be.  But they’re all integrated, and the services are all so interconnected that you can’t just carve them out and rebuild one or the other.  So the phase-in of these projects becomes extremely important.

We recommend that the Hospital Building Safety Board and OSHPD have some flexibility to look at specific sites; determine how likely there is to be an earthquake there; look at the circumstances connected to the critical service areas, and the plans for rebuilding or retrofitting those facilities.  And then make judgements on what is flexible, what will still protect patients in that interim period of time without having to put up temporary facilities that meet the full standards.  I mean if you’re going to have a building for two years while the construction’s going on, it doesn’t make sense to say that building, or if it’s a one-story temporary building, has to meet every single one of the standards of a permanent hospital.  But it does illustrate the dilemma that we find ourselves in this regard.  And that then gets us to Recommendations 4 the bottom of Page 4 which is the one I just mentioned.

In summary on Page 5, we list four bullets there for consideration by the Legislature.  We believe that these items are very important for us to move forward to work with the state, work with the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development, protect patients at the same time, make progress towards complying with this Act.

In conclusion, I would say, again, that we are committed to supporting this bill.  We are committed to doing so in a way that is affordable.  And finally doing so in a way that assures the public that their interests are being served.  And we look forward to working with you to do this.  It’s a major challenge.  I can’t actually overstate the importance of SB 1953 to the state as well as to the hospitals.  I cannot also overstate the financial crunch that this puts hospitals in above and beyond where they are today.  So it’s going to be a challenging year and then a year or two after that.  And we appreciate your interest and support and look forward to working with you.  Thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Mr. Dauner.  I think what I will do is we will allow questions to be asked immediately following each witness because I think the questions will be fresh in our minds.

And I just have one question, and that is, that you indicated that SB 1953, as to which you anticipated the cost to actually go all the way to the year 2030, will cost about $24 billion to comply with those type of deadlines.  Do you have an estimate as to how much it will cost to comply to the 2008 deadline?

MR. DAUNER:  We believe that cost to be somewhere in the neighborhood of $10 to $12 billion for the 2008 deadline.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Do you have an estimate as to how much it would cost for the 2002 deadline?

MR. DAUNER:  I believe that number is about $2 billion but I’m going to ask Roger Richter on our staff.

MR. ROGER RICHTER:  (Inaudible).

MR. DAUNER:  About $1 billion to comply with the first deadline.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  The $1 billion to comply with the January 2000 deadline, $10 billion to $12 billion to comply with a January 2008 deadline--

MR. DAUNER:  And another $14 billion or so to comply with 2030.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  And then $24 billion to comply with 2030.  Any idea in terms of rural hospitals how much it will cost for them to comply with the 2013 deadline?

MR. DAUNER:  The rural hospitals are going to be able to save some money as a result of the actions being taken right now by OSHPD concerning single story buildings.  Must rural hospitals don’t have any financial resources, number one.  Number two, fortunately, most of them are single story.  And we might ask OSHPD to comment about the standards on single story hospitals.

Roger, do we have an exact fix on the rural hospitals’ costs at this point?

MR. RICHTER:  No, we will not have any specific information until after January 1, 2001, when the reports that are submitted to OSHPD.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Okay, I’m also curious as to whether you have any figures as to--I’m trying to figure out what is the financial viability of any hospital out there, whether it’s a state hospital, for-profit hospital, not-for-profit hospital, when they’re located in communities that are predominately medically underserved.  And I guess I'll hold that question at bay and allow my colleagues to ask questions.  Chairman Gallegos, any questions?

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Thank you, Senator Escutia.  Duane, on the financial assistance proposal that you stated in your testimony, you said it could cover part of the cost.  Has there been any attempt to try to calculate even a ballpark figure how much you expect to be covered through some of these financial assistance proposals?

MR. DAUNER:  At this point, we have not, and the reason is we don’t know the magnitude of what they will be.  For example, the HUD program, and I will tell you that we’ve had discussions with members in the House of Representatives from California about modifying the FEMA law.  And we do have people on the committees of jurisdiction in both parties that are supportive of getting a change there.  Obviously, that’s a major change if we can achieve it, but it’s a very big long shot.  If we could get mitigation grants from the federal level to help in these projects before an earthquake, that would be a tremendous advantage for California.  I’m not sure we can get it, but we’re going to try.  We’re also going to attempt to get some low-interest loans from the Small Business Administration for these types of projects.

At the state level, certain hospitals can qualify for California Health Facility Financing Authority and others cannot.  And the amount of money that might be made available through that loan mechanism has yet to be determined.  There’s also one other thing I should say.  Our estimate of $24 billion is that--it’s our best estimate based on current information.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Well, I’m glad you brought it up because I was not completely sold that it was going to be $24 billion.  And obviously, it’s going to be our charge to try to find an accurate figure.

MR. DAUNER:  Right.  And we won’t be able to find an accurate figure until a year from now.  And then if we get the confidential financial information submitted on what the project costs would be, then we’ll know.  And that is our best estimate, and it obviously is not going to be right on the money.  But we believe that it is in the ballpark.  But Mr. Gallegos, the amount of money that would come from each one of these kind of components of assistance, we have not yet tried to quantify.  

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Will you attempt to do so at some point during this process?

MR. DAUNER:  Yes.  

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Any idea when you might arrive at some kind of figures, even initial figures?

MR. DAUNER:  Well, I think we were going to determine which ones are really viable and how far could we go with the California Healthcare Financing Authority.  As an example, and we could maximize the amount of money that’s available there, apply it to the hospitals that qualify, and then make an estimate of how many of those institutions would actually take advantage of it, then we’ll be able to get a figure.  And my guess is that that’s going to take us most of this year to do that.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Do you think we could prioritize hospitals that would receive that assistance in a similar way that you’ve proposed to prioritize hospitals based on their geographic proximity to seismically active areas?

MR. DAUNER:  There are two answers to that question.  First of all, the law applies to hospitals regardless of where they’re located.  So it affects every one of them equally, but hospitals are not equal.  That is some hospitals are located in suburban areas and have a better financial position than others.  Some are rural and so small they don’t have any source of funding.  Some others are safety-net hospitals that have no recourse for obtaining funds from patients or others, and it cuts across the board.

But it’s very difficult to say that a hospital located here should get money--let’s say that both of them are equally in need of retrofit or rebuild--it’s very difficult to make the value judgement that this hospital should get it.  This hospital shouldn’t and then these patients are going to have no access or they’re not going to have a safe building.  It’s a tough judgement, but we thus far have said we believe that all hospitals have to comply with the law and that assistance should be provided in a level table way that makes those services available.  Now there still may be some prioritization based on certain criteria that might exist with a state program.  And we have not addressed that issue.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  But Duane, wouldn’t you have that scenario that you just laid out if we were to follow your proposals to extend some of these deadlines?  I mean you’d have some hospitals that were non-compliant, and you’d have some hospitals that were moving forward to become compliant.

MR. DAUNER:  Well, they would have to move--

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  You’re going to have that system anyway irrespective of whether there’s additional financial assistance involved.

MR. DAUNER:  That’s true.  All hospitals would have to comply, and if we extended the period under certain circumstances to 2013, it would apply to all hospitals regardless of where they’re located.  And we believe the trade-off there to get the job done better and more affordable is a good trade-off provided that OSHPD agrees with that site-specific analysis.  So I don’t know what the final answer is, but I do know that--

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  I don’t think any of us do.  Don’t feel alone.

MR. DAUNER:  But we certainly know that the magnitude of the issue is so over-whelming that we’ve got to plan it out on a gradual basis in order to absorb the challenges that are attendant financially as well as otherwise.  I mean the pressures on the state, for example, are going to be horrendous when they get 500 projects at one time before them for construction, retrofitting and rebuilding.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Duane, just one more question.  If we were to move toward extending these deadlines in the manner that you are proposing or extend them in whatever way we would ultimately agree to do, don’t we run the risk that we could increase the costs by increasing and extending these deadlines beyond the staggering amount that we’re looking at now which is estimated to be $24 billion?  And is that a risk that we should really look at and evaluate before we decided whether extension of these deadlines if a good idea?

MR. DAUNER:  I’ll let the financial expert next to me speak to the finances of it.  There would be some inflation costs.  The reason we’re recommending it is because of simply the logistics of getting the job done.  And phasing it in such a way that we don’t increase the temporary costs of buildings while this other construction’s being done.  We looked at it from the standpoint of what’s practical on our side to get the plans prepared, all the analysis done, submit it to the state, line-up financing, phase it in, and have temporary facilities in place during that period of time.  And we believe that it’s impossible to do all of that by 2008.  So we looked at it from that standpoint.

We know that it would cost less if we can have the flexibility on temporary buildings we requested.  It will cost far less than it would to try to compress it and force the hospitals to do something different and build other facilities that they would not otherwise have to construct.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  I guess what I’m looking at--I don’t mean to tip any hands here--but it appears as though we’re trying to look at a way of phasing in these costs in a manner that Senator Escutia kind of asked in her question and tried to draw out.  But we’re also looking at ways that we can prioritize the spending of this money for retrofitting in a manner where we can direct it to the areas that need it the most.  And I guess my concern is while on one end we’re trying to do that in order to see if we can’t minimize the cost to some degree, that on the other end by granting extensions, we run the risk that we can really raise the cost of this total proposal.  And I guess I asked that because, at least in my mind, I’m trying to weigh one against the other.  I mean if it’s going to cost so much more by extending the deadlines five years, are we in that sense not accomplishing what we’re trying to accomplish?  And that’s why I asked that.

Thank you, Madame Chair.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have a question from Ms. Zettle, and then Mr. Wayne and anybody else.

MS. ZETTLE:  Thank you, Madame Chair.  And some of my questions were addressed with Dr. Gallegos.  I appreciate that because I am concerned that the cost, the $24 billion, is in today’s dollars not reflecting inflation, and that we’re just kind of estimating the tip of the iceberg.  Particularly when you tell us that there is a risk for litigation with the for-profit hospitals telling their shareholders the dire circumstances that they’re in.  Which leads to my next question is that, is there anything we can do to minimize the litigation risk as these hospitals disclose their seismic costs?

MR. DAUNER:  Okay, I’ll make one comment, and then Mark Harrison, I think, would be able to respond as well.  Obviously, if there is some state action, it puts a cloak of government protection on it.  And secondly, if the information is held confidential and not released and used indiscriminately by people that may have other objectives, or just news media that put it out there and then people draw their own conclusions.  And sometimes the wrong ones.  It would certainly be helpful.  We are not asking for any “liability protection” here.  What we’re asking for is to make sure that the data which is important for the state and for us to understand the magnitude of the issue, not to be used in a counter-productive way against the hospitals.  And I think that’s really where we need to focus our attention.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you.  We have a question from Assemblymember Wayne.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER HOWARD WAYNE:  I’m trying to get my hands around these figures a little bit better.  Historically, this goes back to the ‘71 quake in Sylmar?  And the ‘73 Alquist Act.  My understanding, and help me here, is that hospital buildings constructed after ‘73 are in compliance with 2008 standards?

MR. DAUNER:  Generally, the answer to that question is yes, but there are exceptions to that answer, and that’s sort of the dividing line.  But just because it’s post-1973 doesn’t automatically mean it’s in compliance.  But the likelihood is far greater because there were different standard and much higher standards imposed after that point in time.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Let’s focus on those ‘73 and earlier ones because they’re the ones who are the vast majority of at-risk buildings.  Do we know how many building there are?

MR. DAUNER:  There are about 2,600 buildings in the 550 hospitals, and about 1,300 of them are out of compliance.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Are pre-‘73 hospitals, predominately?

MR. DAUNER:  That number is predominately pre-‘73, but there are some of them that are post-‘73 that are also out of compliance.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  We’ll hold those in a second.  Of those pre-‘73 hospitals, how many of them would be fully depreciated or obsolete in any event regardless of earthquake standards by 2008?

MR. DAUNER:  Well, you could look at that in one of two ways.  And we have some hospital buildings that were constructed in the twenties and before, and they’re still being used.  Are they depreciated out down to the 10 percent value?  It depends on a whole variety of things, and if you said that they would be depreciated out in a normal circumstances on a 40-, or 50-, or 60-year basis, you might conclude they’ve been depreciated out.  But normally on their books because there’s always been work redone, and there have been additions, and so forth, it would not be “totally depreciated out” and Mark maybe should speak to that.

But the fact is, regardless of whether it is 80 percent or 40 percent depreciated, the hospitals don’t have any money to put up front to make the new construction expenditures.  That’s the bind we find ourselves.  

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Perhaps a better way of phrasing that question is absent these earthquake standards--let’s assume they weren’t here--how many of those 1,300 buildings would not be in use in any event by 2008?

MR. DAUNER:  That’s speculation on our part, but I can tell you this.  There are a lot of hospital buildings--

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  It’s real important understanding what the real cost is.  How many of these would no longer be in use even after earthquake standards?

MR. DAUNER:  We don’t know the answer, but I will tell you that if you’d have asked that question of me 20 years ago of the buildings that were maybe 40 or 50 years old, we would have said in another 20 years by the turn of the century, none would be in existence because they’d all be replaced.  And that hasn’t happened.  And the reason it hasn’t happened is because the hospitals don’t have the money to do it.  And my guess is in 2030, there will still be a good number of those buildings around because the hospitals don’t have an alternative but to use them.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  I just want to be sure that in coming up with whatever 2008 figure we’re talking about, which is somewhere between $10 billion and $12 billion right now, you aren’t including in that figure the rebuilding of hospitals that would have been rebuilt in any event by that date.  We will be looking solely at the apportion that’s attributable to the earthquake standards.  

MR. DAUNER:  There are approximately $1.5 billion of hospital expenditures per year.  And those go through the State Office of Planning, OSHPD.  But those are not all spread out among all the hospitals.  So you may have a 20-year period of time when over the 500 community hospitals, if 300 or 200 of those did all of that construction, and there’s another 100 or 200 that had no construction, then they may be out of compliance.  So it’s not like that money and that construction is spread evenly over all the hospitals.  It is not.  And so that’s why you can’t come up with a precise answer to your question.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  It certainly does go to the actual cost respective to the earthquake standard.  Let me go to a different issue.  I’m looking at this map of zones, and it looks like everything that isn’t in Zone 3 is in Zone 4.  And if you believe this map, San Diego has as much risk of earthquake as San Francisco or LA.  It strikes me as a fairly crude map of assessing seismic risk in California.  Are there better maps available such as that used by CEA which are more predictive of the real risk of quakes in various portions of the state?

MR. DAUNER:  The answer to that question is there are additional zones for purposes of schools and hospitals.  California’s classified into Zones 3 and 4.  But, for example, Los Angeles City or Los Angeles County is actually higher than Zone 4, if you took it to that next level of sophistication.  This describes, based on the criteria established for schools and hospitals, this two-fold delineation.  

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  We’re available to reconsider and look at this, and among the prioritization we may want to do, is take a better predictive map and see which areas are the highest risk and perhaps hold them to a 2008 standard, and prioritize other areas which are at less seismic risk and spread out that calendar so it doesn’t have to be done by 2008.  So we can stretch over the period of compliance here.  And I would like certainly to consider better predictive maps that have been produced certainly by CEA or similar organizations so we aren’t held to everything 2008 based on a standard which says, I believe incorrectly, that San Diego is at much a risk as the Bay Area.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you very much, Mr. Wayne.  We have a question now from Senator Knight and then Assemblywoman Aroner.

SENATOR PETE KNIGHT:  Thank you very much, Madame Chair.  I think I have a unique situation, but I have a hospital in Inyo County.  It’s the only hospital in Inyo County.  It’s the only hospital for many miles.  They’re telling me that if they don’t retrofit, they’re going to have to close down.  Is that true from what I’m hearing here today?

MR. DAUNER:  Well, the law as it now stands doesn’t have flexibility in the standards.  If you don’t meet the standard by 2008, you can’t have a license.  And that’s what they were describing to you.  Or when you get to the 2030, if you don’t meet the standard for licensure, you won’t be able to stay open.  And that is true for many hospitals in the state.  And fortunately, the regulations that OSHPD is adopting now, and if we can get some additional flexibility, we can provide ultimately compliance with all of these standards in a way that will not close down hospitals indiscriminately.

SENATOR KNIGHT:  One other question, does that deadline mean contracts signed or work completed?

MR. DAUNER:  Well, as of this moment, it means that the projects have to be completed and ready for license.

SENATOR KNIGHT:  And so it’s not 2008.  By the time they secure the funding, do the contracting, we’re up against deadlines almost already.

MR. DAUNER:  That’s correct, and that was really the point that I was trying to make earlier is that if you back up from 2008, you take a three or four-year construction timeframe, and then you add on the state reviews, and then you add to that all the preliminary work the hospital has to do in getting the plans prepared and all of the studies that they have to complete, financing all of those things, we’re already behind the eight ball timewise.

SENATOR KNIGHT:  You’re right.  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN DION ARONER:  That leads to a couple of more questions then because the current requirements have been on the books for quite a while now, correct?

MR. DAUNER:  By current, do you mean--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Nineteen, ninety-four is when--

MR. DAUNER:  The law was passed in 1994, and the first requirement of submitting the plans of evaluation and correction, that date is not till January 1, 2001.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  I understand that, but my presumption is that hospitals have been looking at this since the Act was passed.

MR. DAUNER:  I think that that assumption is probably too optimistic.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Okay, all right.  I’m pleased that you’re willing--better that you’ve said it than some of us.  Okay, because Ms. Escutia, I’m sure, was going to have some remarks about that.  So that’s the first piece.

Then the second piece is that--well, I sorry that that was the answer to the first question because I’m hoping that what the answer to the second question is more positive, and that is that I was listening to your testimony in my office.  I’m sorry I wasn’t here, but I didn’t want to eat my lunch up here today.  So what I was hearing from you is that the thresholds are different for 2008 and 2030.  One is just saying the building will stand, the other is saying that it actually continues to operate?

MR. DAUNER:  Generally speaking that’s correct.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Okay.  So I am presuming that if I’m a hospital director, and the financial people involved with hospitals and stuff like this, and I’m looking at major construction for seismic purposes since those standards are very different.  But if one is going to make an investment--you said the life of a hospital can be 50 or 60 years, so you don’t just keep doing this over and over again.  Then it’s my presumption that many hospitals are then looking right now at not just meeting the 2008 standard, but figuring out if we’re going to do this, let’s do this correctly so that we meet the 2030 standard or else this is going to be exhausting.  I mean some of those directors won’t be there for the second round, but that’s not the issue.  There won’t be dollars around either.  So is it true that a lot of the hospitals that are going through this as they are beginning to look now are planning for the out year and not just the close one of 2008?

MR. DAUNER:  You really hit a key point.  Because in 1994, we thought based on what we knew, that most hospitals would comply with the 2008 standards.  But now that they’ve gotten in to this and made the analyses, it would actually cost more to comply with 2008 and then turn around and have to rebuild for 2030.  It is better to go ahead and rebuild and meet the 2030 deadline.  That’s part of the reason that we were recommending changing the 2008 date when that situation exists.

And I also should say that when I answered your question, I answered it truthfully that it was optimistic to think that hospitals jumped on it in 1994, ‘95, and ’96.  But in perspective the regulations issued by the state for the hospitals to follow were not issued until 1997.  So while the law was passed in 1994, the regulations were issued, ultimately the last set, in 1997.  And then the hospitals have engaged the proper consultants and architects and engineers to conduct the evaluations.  So they haven’t been sitting on their laurels during that period of time since 1997 when the regulations were adopted.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Okay.

My next question is I think I heard you say something, but I’m hoping I might have lost the context of it.  Because I heard you use a phrase that the hospitals have no money to do this.  That's not my presumption.  My presumption is that in a discussion like this, we’re talking hopefully about forming partnerships if the state is going to play in this at all.  

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  I just heard the chairman of the budget committee on the Assembly side.  I’m sure she was telling me through her eyes that the state has no money, either.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Okay, thank you, Madame Chair.

You’ve done an assessment now, at least a quick and dirty assessment, where you think that we are in the $24 billion world.  And that’s the aggregate, and we can get over, hopefully, the issues regarding the confidentiality so we can get actual information and then have the aggregate.  And then I’m presuming break it down in some way in regards to priorities, whether that is county hospitals versus university hospitals versus community--however that is and then in zones and blah, blah, blah.

But you also have an idea of how much capital is out there in your world that’s available for this.  And the reason I ask that is--you might not know this--but the district I happen to represent is at the tip of the iceberg in this whole problem.  I represent the East Bay, and I have hospitals going through all kinds of massinations right now trying to figure out just what to do in life.  But one of the issues that they raise very often is they’re making dramatic changes in their legal and financial status is the issue of seismic retrofitting.  And as they’re wooing one another in this whole exchange that’s taking place in a corporate manner, millions and hundreds of millions of dollars are being thrown around in those conversations that, “if you join us, we have $300 million available to you.”  And I think it’s something like that in one of the instances in my district.  And so that says to me you all do have money here to play.

And so the question is--but I’m not even interested in particular ones, Madame Chair--the question is, we’ve done an aggregate now of what we thing--at least a cheap and dirty, as I said.  Do you have a cheap and dirty for how much money’s on the table on the hospital side?

MR. DAUNER:  The answer to that question is are you talking about cash or are you talking about their ability to borrow?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Both.

MR. DAUNER:  Okay.  We don’t know exactly the ability of hospitals to borrow.  If you look at all the assets, not counting the buildings but the cash assets, I think the cash assets of all the hospitals would come in the vicinity of $10 billion.  But that number is misleading because it’s concentrated in a certain percentage of the hospitals.

We have some hospitals that barely meet payroll from payroll to payroll.  They have zero cash reserves.  And we have some others that do have cash reserves.  We have some that have foundations that have been built up over the years, and those foundations would have--I can think of one, a private hospital, where the independent foundation community not-for-profit foundation that’s built up over the last 40 years has $100 million in it.  And that’s very atypical.  So it goes the gamut and you couldn’t say the hospitals have money.  It’s like saying that you’re not going to drown when the river’s an average of only 2 feet deep, in some cases it’s 20 feet deep.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Right.  Thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you very much, Mr. Dauner.  I think that exchange in terms of your testimony as well as the questions from practically every member of the committee lasted 55 minutes.  But I think it’s good.  It’s good to have this first round of give-and-take because it can properly frame the issues.  But I would hope that the testimony after you will be a little bit shorter, and hopefully the questions will be a little bit more limited.  Thank you.

MR. DAUNER:  Thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Our next witness is Mr. Harrison, Managing Director of Shattuck, Hammond Partners.

MR. MARK HARRISON:  Thank you very much.  Yes, let me briefly start off by introducing myself.  My name is Mark Harrison, Managing Director of Shattuck, Hammond Partners.  Shattuck, Hammond Partners is an investment banking organization that actually is a division of Price Waterhouse Cooper Securities.  Shattuck, Hammond itself is an organization that specializes in providing investment banking services exclusively to hospitals and healthcare services organizations.  So our clients include not only hospitals, but physician organizations--another trouble spot in our industry--and the managed care and insurance industry, as well.  For those clients, we provide merger and acquisition services, and we also, probably in some respects very relevant to this discussion today, we provide capital market services or financing services that are really largely directed at hospital organizations.  So we’re actually one of the qualified firms on the California Healthcare Financing Agency’s pool.  And we underwrite dead issues for hospital clients in the State of California.

I, myself, have 17 years of investment banking experience, and 13 of those years have been in the State of California.  As Carl Sagan says, “I’ve worked on billions and billions of dollars worth of financing as well as mergers and acquisitions.”  So my perspective and experience, I believe, spans the range of strategic perspective and operating perspective as well as the financial perspective on the hospital industry.

First of all, I’d like to say that I’m a strong supporter of earthquake safety.  I personally lived through the Loma Prieta quake in 1989.  I was a homeowner of a house in the Marina District.  As a result of that quake, I was forced out of my home for two months, and then I suffered probably the worst indecency of having to go through a construction project for a year after that to substantially retrofit my house.  So unfortunately, I know a lot more about seismic safety than I really would care to know.  And it is a critical issue.

At the same time, though, I have grave concerns about whether the industry in its current financial position can withstand the additional cost of SB 1953 as well as all the other costs that are being imposed on the industry at this time.  What I’d like to do in my testimony--which I will try and get through in 15 minutes--is focus on the financial status of the industry, and hopefully, I can provide a link between the time that the law was passed in 1994, and the current status of the industry.  Because in addition to all this costing a lot more as Duane has talked than was originally conceived, the industry has changed dramatically.  It’s changed dramatically in the last two or three years.  I’m sure those of you who are involved in the industry can support me on that.

At any rate, I’d also like to talk about--in addition to the financial status of the industry--I’d like to talk about the capital markets, and the financing dynamics which will come into play as different organizations look at financing some of these costs.  Probably the most important thing to understand is the starting position of the hospital system in the State of California.  Today, I think we can be very proud that California has one of the lowest cost and most effective healthcare systems in the country.  That is the good news.  In 1998, healthcare expenditures as a percentage of GDP in California, gross domestic product, were 12 percent.  That compares to 13.6 percent in the country.  In 1997, California had the fifth highest managed care penetration of all states.  In addition, in 1997, California has the lowest commercial and Medicaid premiums of among the five most populous states in the country.

The bad news is that the hospital sector, in particular, is under very significant financial pressure today.  What we have is a situation where we have a system that has been very successful at lowering and maintaining and capping healthcare cost.  But because of that, the system is in a very lean position.  And when you’re in a very lean position running a business, you’re much more vulnerable to additional costs or volatility that’s imposed or experienced by the industry.  In 1998, we’ve just been able to review the OSHPD data that's out for the June 30, 1998 period.  Year end at that period, 52 percent of the hospitals recorded negative operating net income in California.  Forty-one percent recorded negative net income.  Now, the negative operating net income excludes interest income.  So what that’s telling you is a huge majority of hospitals in this state are not making money from operations and are actually relying on interest income from that cash that Duane was referring to earlier.

Let me proceed with a brief financial overview of the industry today.  What I’d like to do is describe the industry in terms of revenues, and things that are affecting the industry on the revenue side of the equation, and then expenses on the other side.  Because when you understand the revenue and expense dynamics of the industry, you can then, I think, have an accurate picture of why the industry is in a deteriorating position today.  The revenue factors are really two primary factors.  The first is the federal payment reductions that were mandated through the 1997 balanced budget amendment.  And those are Medicare payment reductions which have been estimated to be approximately $5.2 billion in reduced payments over a five-year period beginning in 1997.

There was recently a study published by an organization, by HCIA.  HCIA is an information and research company.  They did a study of the major metropolitan statistical areas around the country, and of the impact of the BBA--it’s known as the BBA--reduced Medicare payments on total profit margins for hospitals.  Based on that study, they raided these metropolitans statistical areas, or MSAs, grossly in three categories.  They were either safe, or they were challenged, or they were endanger.  Challenged means that based on these reductions, that margins would be effected to the extent that hospitals would be very challenged in general in that region to operate their business.  Endanger means that their viability is being threatened.

The study surveyed eight major MSAs in the State of California.  And of those eight, five were deemed by the study to be endangered.  Those MSAs included LA, Los Angeles, Oakland, Sacramento, San Diego, and San Jose.  The other three interestingly were ranked as being safe.  There were none that were ranked as being challenged.  The other three were Orange County, Riverside-San Bernardino, and San Francisco.  The other major factor on the revenue side is the continued competition.  The things that have made the competition and managed care, the things that have California so successful are continuing.  They haven’t stopped.  This is one of the most competitive markets, and has one of the most advanced managed care systems in the county.  In fact, California led the manage care effort in the country.  And these pressures have not abated.  And what they have done is capped, or reduced in many cases, revenues to hospitals.  We’re seeing among our clients net revenues actually declining, year to year.

On the expense side, the biggest expense that hospitals have is their labor cost.  And in California, as I’m sure many of you are well-aware, we are having a rather serious nursing shortage.  In addition, we see increasing unionization of the healthcare workforce.  These factors have put a great deal of upward pressure on wages of healthcare workers, and we’ve seen those wage increases to be well above the inflation rate in the state.  We have the recent legislation that was passed that will eventually require minimum nurse staffing ratios.  That will add a great deal of expense to the hospital income statement.  In addition, hospitals have huge technology demands.  They’ve just been through extraordinary expenditures for Y2K.  They are investing heavily in information technology and continuing to invest in the medical technology that’s demanded by the consumers in this state.  There are pharmacy costs that are rising at multiples of the rate of inflation.  In 1998, average pharmacy costs were up 15 percent.  I’ve seen pharmacy costs literally double at some of my clients.  And then there are a host of other healthcare reforms in general that, although they may be needed, are factually adding a great deal of costs to hospital expenses.

In summary then, if you take a look at these trends, you see revenues either flat or in many cases declining.  In the best cases, they’re rising very modestly.  And then we see the expense line rising dramatically.  And what we’ve seen is a situation that shows deterioration because those lines have crossed.  And if they haven’t crossed yet for some organizations, they’re probably destined to cross soon.

From the capital market’s perspective, the majority of California’s hospitals are not-for-profit.  And they finance themselves through the tax-exempt bond markets.  Many of those hospital organizations carry credit ratings.  So I’d like to review for you the perspective of the rating agencies who are objective parties who actually provide the ratings that investors depend on when they purchase these bonds.

In the years 1997 through 1999 for Moody’s Investor Services, the ratio of downgrades to upgrades was 4 to 1.  So there were four rating downgrades in the State of California of hospital organizations for every one upgrade.  And that’s organizational, so if there was an enormous system that was downgraded, and there were several, then actually the ratio of hospitals affected would be much greater than that.  S and P, Standard and Poors, the other major rating agency, during the same three-year period had a 5-to-1 ratio of downgrades to upgrades.

The situation, interestingly, was extremely serious in 1999.  In ‘99, Moody’s had six downgrades and no upgrades, Standard and Poors had eight downgrades and only one upgrade.  So we’ve seen the deterioration really accelerate in 1999.  And, unfortunately, that’s the year for which we do not yet have OSHPD data, so we’re not able to analyze the state of the industry for the most recent year which actually reflects the most deteriorated position.  The rating agencies have told me in their comments, that they have a negative picture of credit quality of hospitals in the state of California, and that further deterioration in their view is likely.  And this is before they have factored in the impact of SB 1953.  Now, they’re aware of SB 1953, but most hospitals have not yet been able to finalize their estimates.  And, in fact, those estimates have been changing dramatically over the years that they've been working on them, they have not yet factored in that impact.

Needless to say, the capital markets are anxious about healthcare in general in the nation as well as in the State of California.  I’d like to talk to you about the dynamics of profit of some of the financial factors as they relate to access to capital.  Firstly, reduce profitability translates directly into higher risk.  As your profits go down, the risks of your organization goes up as it’s viewed by the capital markets.  And, therefore, you will have increased borrowing costs due to that higher risk.

The deterioration in the industry in general is reflected in the spreads of the interest rate relationships among different types of securities.  And, in fact, if you look at the change within the last year, that’s January to January, the spread relationship between weak hospital credits and regular municipal credits, the difference in the borrowing costs has tripled in the last year.  It’s gone from 25 bases points where weaker hospitals will pay 25 bases points or one quarter of one percent more than a general municipal entity to 75 bases points in one year.  Within the hospital sector, in comparing weaker hospital credits to the strongest hospital credits, that spread over the last year has doubled.  So weaker hospital credits now are paying 58 bases points or .58 percent more than stronger hospital credits.  And that number was 27 bases points, or .27 percent at the beginning of 1999.

Hospitals have a very capital-intensive business.  And in general, hospitals because they have such huge amounts of capital to support are relatively highly levered.  They already have significant amounts of debt on their balance sheet.  As leverage increases, this translates directly into higher risk as viewed by the capital markets.  That higher risk again requires higher interest rates to compensate those investors for higher risk.  Reduced liquidity or reduced cash on the balance sheet also translates directly into higher risk and higher borrowing costs.  When you understand the capital markets, it’s kind of a catch-22 situation.  The lower your profitability, the higher your risk, the higher your borrowing costs.  Essentially, quickly leads you to the point where you’re priced out of the market.  Either you cannot afford the debt, or people simple will not lend to you.  

In summary, you can kind of think about the impact from a capital market’s perspective on hospitals.  If you imagine hospitals on their current revenue base adding substantial amounts of debt and their related costs to their financial profile.  When hospitals issue debt in normal circumstances, they issue debt mostly to support activities that produce incremental revenue and incremental profit.  We’re talking about a situation where there is no incremental revenue.  There’s only incremental debt.  And I think this is a very dangerous situation.  And, in fact, I believe that many hospitals, and I can’t tell you how many because the situation is dependent on individual situation, will be unable to finance either through their cash or through debt the total costs that they have.  Not only 1953, but the other capital costs which are quite significant on an on-going basis.

Now, what happens when hospitals can’t finance these costs?  Well, we believe that if hospitals are forced to conform to 1953 as it currently stands, we believe that many hospitals will be faced with sale, change of use, closure, or in the worse case bankruptcy.  We, as I mentioned earlier, I personally in my firm are involved in mergers and acquisitions activity and I can tell you that the issues involved in sale, closure, even change of use, the community issues, and the regulatory issues in this state, are tremendously complex and difficult.  The options are not good, even if you can’t conform.  There are serious access issues for vulnerable populations, and there are some serious competitive issues.  In Duane’s example earlier, if there’s a town with two hospitals, one can’t afford it so it’s delicensed and becomes a skilled nursing facility.  Then suddenly we have a monopoly situation in that market.  So there are some competitive issues.  The things that have made California’s healthcare systems successful, may in fact be challenged.

The traditional response of the industry to added costs or reduced reimbursement is to shift costs.  I don’t know if you’ve heard of cost shifting, but in the old day when Medicare reduced it’s reimbursement, what happened is that hospitals would turn to the part of their revenue base where they could raise prices.  And they would raise prices to cover that reduction in revenue.  That’s know as cost shifting.  In California, the payer mix is approximately, and this is rough about 65 percent governmental pairs, and about 35 percent commercial.  So if all of the cost of SB 1953, if there is no government subsidy, or no outside source, and all of those costs are shifted to the commercial sector, we will see enormous price increases ultimately in addition to all of these other disruptive events that will occur in the industry.

The other interesting aspect of cost shifting is that disproportionate share hospitals or hospitals that provide a disproportionate amount of their care to vulnerable populations have much lower commercial base to cost-shift to.  So they will be more severely impacted by this type of requirement.

Two final comments.  First is that in an ideal world, we would employ cost benefit analysis and risk management analysis in re-examining and perhaps redesigning 1953.  I believe these tools have been underemployed in the way that SB 1953 has evolved.  My second point is that the degree of factual understanding that exists today regarding SB 1953 is extremely low.  And I think you could argue, regardless of your position, that it would be irresponsible to move forward with an action that has such a dramatic impact without having a much more thorough factual understanding of how it will affect the marketplace.  And finally, I think this is a situation where the old saying applies that the cure, in fact, may be worse than the disease.

With that, I guess, I’ll open up to any questions.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you so much, Mr. Harrison.  Any questions from the members?  Ms. Zettle.

MS. ZETTLE:  Thank you, Madame Chair.  I have just a couple of questions.  You know, you were talking about the financial situations.  Is there an over-concentration of hospitals in some areas that contributes to their financial problems?

MR. HARRISON:  There is an oversupply of hospital beds which has caused in that sense--as managed care has been successful in California, it’s reduced utilization.  That’s because the average occupancy level, according to OSHPD, of licensed beds was about 50 percent.  So that makes hospitals less efficient because their fixed costs are quite high.  So yes, that’s true.

MS. ZETTLE:  If there is an overabundance in hospitals in close proximity, are they competing for more lucrative patients?  Or does the managed care prohibit that kind of thing?

MR. HARRISON:  Oh no, they’re all competing.  They’re all competing.  Some hospitals, depending on their type of hospital, have a role or mission of really focusing on vulnerable populations, county hospitals, for example.  But hospitals are competing for all patients now.  I think it’s fair to say.

MS. ZETTLE:  And do you have any figures on occupancy rates at various hospitals.  Is there a statewide average--

MR. HARRISON:  The statewide average of occupancy in 1997 was 55 percent on an available bed basis, and 50 percent on a licensed basis.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Any further questions from the members?  Hearing none, thank you so much, Mr. Harrison.

Our next witness will be Mr. Kurt Schaefer, Deputy Director of the Office of Statewide Health Planning.  Do you have Dr. Wardigar with you?

DR. WARDIGAR:  I am he.  I’ll say a few words by way of introduction.  (Inaudible) the Department’s formal testimony.  These are just observations of hospitals and earthquakes by a physician who’s been through a few of these episodes.

I lived a fairly sheltered life at UC San Francisco Medical Center teaching nurses and medical students, house staff family medicine until I was asked by Mayor Feinstein to be head of the San Francisco Health Department.  And then as it turned out because the administrator of our county hospital, San Francisco General, took another job elsewhere for about a year, I served as the CEO of the San Francisco General Hospital.  And had during that time some dealings with the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development which allowed me to see that office from the other side.  I had, naturally you never know, how inter-connected life is and that many years later I’d wind up being the Director of the Office of Statewide Health Planning.  At that time we did have some issues with the facilities division, it wasn’t headed by Kurt Schaefer at that time.  But occasionally had to remind the office that we were in hopes of building an AIDS ward before the epidemic, and not afterwards.  But it was useful to have seen the office from the other side and how helpful they can be.

I was, as another speaker mentioned, I was health director when we had the Loma Prieta earthquake.  Mayor Feinstein was always in great fear of earthquakes and took drills and being prepared very seriously, and we had many simulated drills.  And I was informed of all the things I had to do.  And the first thing I had to do was go to the command station where I’d be joined by the mayor, fire department, police chief and so forth to see if there were a disaster, how it’d be managed.

And so when those rumbling sounds began around 5:30, most people were out at Candlestick Park for the first night of the World Series, realized that we had a significant earthquake on our hands and headed to the command center.  I was virtually the first one there because it was nearby.  And my job was to see, was the hospital functioning, were the emergency rooms functioning, was there enough blood on hand, how many were injured.  All of those things for which we had had drills.  One thing that I’ll remember vividly, and I’ve mentioned this before, was that evening all the electricity was out in San Francisco, and all the telephones were out.  Everybody remembers it from television, but it was a clear dark night, and at night you could see all of the hospitals in the city because their back-up generators had all gone on, had all gone on within 30 seconds so that people who were on respirators and so forth were protected.  It was quite remarkable.  That sort of 2008 standard that back-up generators be there to go on.  The electricity and communications turned out to be the fragile part of the system, and as you know we did not suffer very much damage in San Francisco.  The worse of the damage was in the East Bay and down in Watsonville.

We’ll fast forward and years later, I’m at the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development, and we have the Northridge Earthquake.  And it’s not that earthquakes follow me in my work, it’s a seismically-active state, and earthquakes occur unfortunately with significant regularity in many areas of California.  And I remember when Zone 3, Coalinga, had its earthquake.  That’s something that we, as Californians, must contend with.

I visited all the hospitals in Northridge, and in Santa Monica, of course, the damage was very extensive.  I don’t think actually the public even got a full sense of how extensive the damage was to hospitals, no less other structures, but to hospitals.  It’s estimated that the damage was $3.5 billion worth of damage to the hospitals.  Well, I remember going to St. Johns.  That hospital’s being completely rebuilt, St. Johns in Santa Monica, and the Sister who’s the administrator of the hospital and rather a saintly person herself, was saying, “Oh, thank the Lord, thank the Lord.”  Her place was in shambles, and I wondered why she kept saying, “Thank the Lord.”  Well, it was because no one actually was killed there, but it was a close call.  The pediatrics ward, I remember, was very severely damaged.

The striking thing, though, about Northridge, and it goes to a question that Mr. Wayne asked earlier, was that there was a very sharp dividing line in how well hospitals faired depending on whether there were built before 1973, and they didn’t do too well.  Or after 1973, they did quite well, and that was after the earliest of the seismic safety laws were in place.

Well, I just say these things to give two examples that were just personal experience.  I introduce Kurt Schaefer for the formal testimony with considerable pride because he’s an individual, UC Davis trained, civil engineer, many years in the US Army Corp of Engineering, who has really done, I think, a superb job, and I really appreciated Duane Dauner’s comments.  We do work very closely with all the hospitals, and with the Hospital Association and its really outstanding leadership.  We do want to implement the SB 1953 in a way that intelligent, mindful of costs, and sensitive to the needs of patient care throughout California.  And we very definitely tend to do this.

We’ve already made considerable progress in dealing with some of the issues that Duane Dauner has raised.  There’s one I want in particular mentioned.  It will come in the formal testimony, and it has to do with rural hospitals, and those sole provider hospitals in rural areas of California.  There are about 76 of them on a formal list.  Most of them are single-story, wood-frame structures.  And as Mr. Schaefer will describe to you, many of the earthquake requirements do not apply to them.  And so for many of these hospitals with some relatively simple things to be done like bolting the building to the foundation, I’m not being factious.  It’s likely that most rural hospitals will have significant relief or it will not have a significant burden in the 1953 work.  I think it turned out that all but two of the 76 rural hospitals that are formally in that category are single story facilities.

That’s an example of ways in which working with the hospitals with the Hospital Association, we are proceeding with the 1953 work in a way that would be cost-sensitive and sensitive to the needs of patient care.


Let me introduce Mr. Schaefer for the formal testimony.


MR. KURT SCHAEFER:  Good afternoon, honorable chairpersons and committee members.  My name is Kurt Schaefer.  I’m the Deputy Director for Facilities Development Division which is one of the divisions of the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development.  It’s a pleasure for me to be here today to give you some information regarding the seismic retrofitting program for hospitals in the state.  This program came about as a requirement of Senate Bill 1953 back in 1994, and was a legislative response to the Northridge earthquake.  The role that the office was given in the 1953 program was to specifically develop a regulatory framework in which to accomplish the retrofitting process.  We have a review and approval requirement for the evaluation reports and compliance plans and then when the actual work that needs to be done to do the retrofitting or reconstruction comes in, we take on our traditional role of reviewing plans, approving them, and then overseeing construction.


By way of some background, you’ve already heard the Sylmar earthquake of 1971 near Los Angeles caused the collapse of several hospitals resulting in some deaths, endangering the lives of other patients, and rendering some of the hospitals incapable of providing emergency care following the earthquake.  As a result, the first Hospital Seismic Safety Act was passed in 1972.  And this provided for structural and fire life safety review by the state.  In 1983, the state totally preempted the local building departments with the passage of the Alfred E. Alquist Hospital Seismic Safety Act.  And this was done to insure statewide uniformity and health facility construction standards.  And for ease of discussion, I’ll refer to both of these as the Alquist Act.


The Act designated the Facilities Development Division of OSHPD as the building department for hospitals and skilled nursing facilities, and so we became responsible for the plan review and approval of all hospital projects and the monitoring of hospital construction.  The purpose of these standards as intended by the Act is to insure the patients and the staff inside the hospital at the time of the event are safe and that the facilities remain functional afterwards so that we can provide needed care for injured persons in the affected community.  When the program was first implemented in 1973, the hospitals that currently existed were grandfathered in.  That is to say they were not required to go back and comply with any new standard.  The concept at the time was that the hospitals, as they did renovation projects, as they rebuilt, as they added on, would over time meet the new and higher standard.

The Northridge earthquake in 1994 indicated that that was apparently not occurring.  The pre-1973 hospitals were damaged significantly, whereas the post-‘73 hospitals for the most part came through it okay.  The structural systems performed rather well.  There was some non-structural damage, and hence in the framework of 1953, there is a little more concern about how do we address the performance of non-structural systems.  There were several things that were laid out within SB 1953.  2001, a little less than a year from now, we’re to get the structural evaluation reports.  And then the compliance plans as to how the hospitals intend to address those problems that they find in their evaluation reports.  January 2002 has a requirement to mitigate problems in four specific systems.

And I need to just address perhaps a misunderstanding that came up earlier.  This deadline is a non-structural deadline only.  There’s no structural work that’s required, and it’s my understanding that the cost estimate for these efforts is something less than $100 million.  The specific systems that we’re looking for are the systems that were felt to be needed in the event of an evacuation.  Specifically, the communications systems so the hospital can communicate that it has a problem and that it needs to be shifting patients.  The emergency power system, that is to make sure that the generator itself stays on its foundation and will function.  We’ve had some problems with medical gas system in the past.  The larger tanks, 20,000 cubic feet and larger, tend to fall over.  We want to make sure those will remain upright.  And then fire alarm systems.  We want to make sure those work.  Those are the four things that need to be addressed by 2002.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Let me stop you there because I’m confused because I though it was Mr. Dauner’s testimony that we said that for January 2002 the cost that you estimated was $1 billion.

MR. DAUNER:  Yes, I stand corrected.  Originally the 2002 regulations were a little more restrictive.  And I remember us estimating that 10 percent of the cost will occur in 2002.  Mr. Schaefer is correct.  They remain very minimal, they’re basically $87 or $100 million, but probably closer to $50 million--

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Alright because there’s a big difference between 100 million and 1 billion.  Thank you.

I’m sorry to interrupt you.

MR. SCHAEFER:  Then by January 1, 2008, general acute care hospitals which have been assessed to pose a risk of collapse, need to have addressed that risk either through retrofitting or decommissioning the building, building new building, or just removing the patients from that particular facility.  The last deadline then is January 1, 2030, when all hospitals are to be in substantial compliance with the Hospital Act.

SB 1953 asks that the office consult with the Hospital Building Safety Board as we try to identify what these critical non-structural systems would be.  The Hospital Building Safety Board is an advisory board, it’s appointed by the director, and it’s made up of architects, structural engineers, mechanical engineers, contractors, has some hospital representation as well as some public representation.  And we’ve worked closely with the board, not only on the non-structural systems, but essentially every aspect of the regulatory framework that we’ve constructed in order to implement 1953.  We’ve used their expertise and I have to say that without that help, we probably would not have been able to meet the deadlines that were set.

We developed the regulations in two phases.  The first phase concerned how to conduct an evaluation of the building.  These are the regulations that have been in place since March of 1997.  The evaluation places each building in a structural performance category as well as a non-structural performance category.  And along with that, we provided for two methods to determine what category you might fall into.  We were asked specifically to develop a rather routine methodology, a series of questions, true/false, false being bad, true being good, that would allow someone to go through and get a very cursory look at what their facilities might end up in a category.

We also developed a more flexible approach, it’s an alternative approach that allows the structural engineer really to look at everything that’s going on in the building to attempt to model all aspects of its lateral force resisting system; and to take into account their site specific ground motion data, so that they might better be able to assess the appropriate category that they would be in.

And later on you’ll hear me talk about these, but there are five categories of each so on the structural performance category or SPC side, you have SPC 1 through 5, 1 being the potential collapse of the building, 5 being a fully compliant building.  Similarly on the non-structural performance structural categories, there’s NPC 1 through 5, 1 being nothing is braced, nothing is anchored, no expectation that the system will function after an earthquake, to 5 being fully self-contained.  They have 72 hours worth of fuel on site, water on site, waste holding tanks.  So they can essentially function without outside influence for a period of 72 hours.

The second set of regulations specified how to accomplish the retrofit.  Now, you know what you are, what do I do with it?  How do I proceed?  These regulations were published a year later in March of 1998, and were used as a template, the regulatory structure that had been developed for state-owned and essential facilities.  Again, we put together a prescriptive method, kind of cookbook, do this, do this, do this, and you come out a better building.  That particular method is referred to as Method A.  You’ll hear people talk about Method A.  That’s the very prescriptive kind of lockstep way of getting through this.  

We also have Method B.  Method B is an alternative method that says, “You can essentially, as a structural engineer, propose any design that you think makes sense.  We will look at it, we will work with you on it.  If it, in fact, is beyond perhaps the expertise of the structural engineers in our office, we can bring in a peer review committee of other outside technical experts to advise us so that between all of these parties working together, we can come to agreement that the solution proposed will, in fact, give us a building that meets the Alquist Act.”

One thing at this point that I’d like to talk about a little is this Zone 3/Zone 4 business.  California has two seismic zones, 3 and 4.  They are both extremely active.  Essentially, the difference is that in Zone 3, the forces that a building might experience are less.  And so as you do your evaluation and as you do your retrofit planning, if you find yourself in Zone 3, the way the regulatory scheme addresses it currently is that you use significantly less forces for your building.  So as you work through the process, you are not addressing, or you are not accounting for, the same level of forces that you would be if you were in Zone 4.  We took the approach that we do have earthquakes in Zone 3.  We ought to make sure through reasonable steps that the systems that are there and that the building that is there can withstand the force that it is likely to see.  Not necessarily just a flat-out Zone 3 force, but the force that it’s likely to see.

The evaluation reports and compliance plans are two separate documents, and they get presented to us at the end of this year.  We go through those, the report itself is going to tell us what was discovered, and how the building was evaluated.  Compliance plan is a schedule wherein the hospital tells us in order to comply, I’m going to do this kind of a project, and it will be done as follows.  And they’re suppose to lay out--we’re allowing so much time for design; we’re allowing so much time for construction; we’re allowing so much time for OSHPD plan review processes.  And the idea here is so that they begin to back plan from the deadlines and get some idea of where they are in their ability to meet those deadlines.

When you think about the 2008 deadline, there is a specific standard that you need to keep in mind as you work through this.  The requirement at 2008 is that the building does not collapse physically.  On the non-structural side, we have set up the requirement that the systems that are servicing what we have defined as critical care areas, don’t fail.  Now critical care areas is any place in the hospital where an invasive procedure is likely to be taking place.  It’s not everywhere in the hospital.  In fact it works out, we’ve done some estimating, and it’s somewhere around 15 to 30 percent of the entire hospital.  It’s not the whole hospital.  So by 2008, what we’re talking about is it doesn’t fall down and if you’re undergoing a procedure, you have a relative reliability that the system is going to function, and you’ll survive.

Twenty-two years later is 2030 compliance which then we’re talking full compliance or substantial compliance throughout the remainder of the building.  So there’s very definite difference between those two standards.  Now since its inception, it’s been understood that 1953 is a significant undertaking in cost, in construction, just in access to patient care.  This thing is big, and we’ve been sensitive to all of those impacts as we’ve tried to work through the regulatory scheme that we’ve presented.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Mr. Schaefer, excuse me, but in the interest of time since we’re still on the first panel, and I think the Senator is attempting to get through this by 5 p.m., could I just ask you to please maybe summarize some of your remarks and then we’ll open the committees up for questions.  You have submitted, and we thank you very much for having submitted your written testimony.  So we do have that to review.

MR. SCHAEFER:  I think the thing then to talk about is this cost issue.  People want to talk about cost a lot.  The CHA has estimated that we’re talking about $10 billion between now and 2008 with an additional $14 billion beyond 2008 to 2030.  As they’ve said, we’re not going to have a real accurate picture of what that looks like until we get these reports next year.  But if you work off of that, just for context, Mr. Dauner has already said about $1.5 billion of work goes through our office every year.  The other number of note that’s kind of interesting to me is that $3.5 billion is about the damage sustained in Northridge which was a rather small event.  About $2 billion of that is being paid for out of FEMA funding.  And just as an aside, FEMA is very much aware of SB 1953, and they’re interested, and they want to know how things are going because, obviously, they keep coming to the state paying when we have earthquake damage.  So they’d like to see some activity, and they’re watching.  And, in fact, they’ve given us a $10 million grant to work through a lot of these issues when we start getting the reports in.

As I said, we work with Hospital Building Safety Board, and we have had several discussions about the regulatory framework as we put it out, and things that we know now that we didn’t know before.  And as a result of that, I’ve issued two interpretations of the regulations.  The cumulative effect of which is to reduce the $10 billion cost by $4 billion.  The first, and these aren’t in order, but the first one that I’d like to talk about has to do with essentially addressing the known performance characteristics of single story wood frame structures; that even though if you do the strict calculations, you can’t make this thing work.  You can’t make the building work.  We know they do work, and so we’ve addressed the fact that they do perform.  We’ve asked that they be bolted to the foundation so we don’t lose utilities.  And if they do that, then the structural retrofit is essentially over for a single story wood frame building.  The estimated cost of that is about $1 billion.

The other issue is there was a disparity in the level of retrofit that you would--if your building was rated an SPC2, which means it can go beyond 2008 to 2030, it could be at say this level and its neighbor might not quite be that high, and it might end up being an SPC1.  Well, when you fix that SPC1 under the original context of the regulations, you end up really fixing it.  It’s way up here and it cost a lot of money to do that.  Since the standard is just make the thing stand up, we went back and looked at that, and said, “Look, if you can fix the things that make you a collapse hazard, re-analyze the building to make sure that the fixes will, in fact, prevent collapse, and then that’s good enough to get past the 2008 deadline.”  I have been told that that particular interpretation is worth $3 billion.

Additionally, using Assemblymember Gallegos’ bill on emergency regulations, we’ve put together a regulatory package because I can only do so much through interpretation, and then we have to go to regulation.  That addresses several other things that have been pointed out that in the spirit of the 2008 deadline which is the building may not be operational afterwards.  It may not even be repairable afterwards, but no one has died.  That perhaps we were trying to get too much in the time frame before 2008.  And so these ten or so regulatory changes address specific things that have been pointed out.  And, again, we’re estimating that those by themselves are about another $1 billion.  So in our mind we’ve reduced the $10 billion cost down to about $5 billion which while $5 billion is still a lot of money, it becomes a little more manageable in the scheme of things.

I think with that I’ll just close by saying that we’ve attempted all along to be very much aware of the cost and the impact of doing this work to hospitals that we continue to look at those issues and adjust as we learn more and understand more.  But we think that at this point in time, we have a relatively reasonable and balanced approached to getting through the current program.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Okay, thank you very much.  Members, any questions?  Mr. Wayne.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Yeah, a couple of questions.  The post-1973 buildings, would they meet the 2008 standard?

MR. SCHAEFER:  In general, yes.  The one thing that we learned in Northridge is that we had a lot of water damage from breaking sprinkler lines.  Most of the post 73 hospitals haven’t addressed the issue of those sprinkler lines, and so we have that as part of the requirement.  So they are going to have to go in and do some work on sprinkler lines to keep the heads from sheering off and the pipes from breaking.  But other than that, I would say in general, they’ll probably be okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Also for the post-1973 buildings would they meet the 2030 standards?

MR. SCHAEFER:  2030?  

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Yes.

MR. SCHAEFER:  Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  So we’re really talking about again the older buildings that need to come up to 2030 standards.

MR. SCHAEFER:  Correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  And have you analyzed looking at just those buildings, how many of those buildings would be out of use in any event by 2008 or 2030?

MR. SCHAEFER:  Some years ago there was a study done, referred to as Milestone Four, and it was kind of the precursor of 1953.  And what came out of that study was an assessment that essentially said, “We’ve got about 26,000, 27,000 hospital buildings.  We would expect 800 to not make the cut, they just wouldn’t be there.  

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  What’s that mean, not make the cut?

MR. SCHAEFER:  They would not be compliant.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Okay.

MR. SCHAEFER:  Some 1,100 or so in the middle that would be in a gray area, and then another 800 on the positive end that are already in compliance.  So that’s kind of how we’ve seen the breakdown that could obviously change when we see the reports and evaluations come in as the year goes on--we’re going to get some of those.

DR. WARDIGAR:  In part answer to Mr. Wayne which makes it a little bit complicated and as Duane pointed out, hospitals are multi-building campuses.  And we have 450 acute care hospitals in California, but those 26,000 buildings.  So what Kurt hasn’t been able to reply to in your questions, of that 800 they’re very good, how many of those are buildings that we recognize for patient care.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Let me go another point, and that in terms of the zones.  I know that you said the zones are basically there for the amount of work that needs to be done with the building.  Could the zones be used for setting priorities as to which building should be done first or to extending deadlines so that the less earthquake-prone zones, an extension could be given to extend the time?

MR. SCHAEFER:  I have to say I think that’s a little bit beyond my technical expertise as far as the understanding of the zones.  I’m sure we can have a dialogue on those things and get the experts together and talk about if that’s a possibility.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  I know certainly that earthquake insurance rates vary by how close one is to an active fault, however that’s defined.  And you may have two places in the same county which have a different risk of quake depending how close they are to a fault.  And so one would think that if one had an acute care hospital on top of or immediately adjacent to a fault, that place you want to get to--you don’t want to extend any deadlines.  You need to do that one first.

But if you have one that is fairly far from a fault, it’s not a substantial risk to a quake.  Perhaps in terms of financing or extending time, that might be of a lower priority?

MR. SCHAEFER:  Again, it’s getting beyond my technical expertise.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Okay.  I want to put the idea out there for discussions to deal with this issue.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Okay, any other questions, members?

Mr. Schaefer, what is the standard for hospitals to comply?  Is it based on a specific seismic episode, or a particular Richter figure.  Or are they required to comply to withstand, I don’t know, 8.5, 8.0?  What exactly is the standard?

MR. SCHAEFER:  Let me see if I can get this.  The design earthquake that is typically used when doing these kinds of projects, is the earthquake that we expect to see or that there is the probability of occurring 10 percent of the time in a 50-year period.  Fifty years is kind of the life-span of the building.  Kind of the way we look at that.  And then we say there’s a 10 percent chance that this earthquake will occur.  Which means that there’s a 90 percent chance that an earthquake will occur that’s different from that design earthquake.  That’s been the standard that’s been used for years in terms of how or where to start on your design process.  So it doesn’t equate necessarily to a particular magnitude on the Richter scale, if you will.  If that gets to your question?

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Well, I guess where I’m heading with this is are we asking hospitals to comply to a level where it might be too unreasonable, and, therefore, very expensive.  And if we were able to say, “Look, reasonable standard is that if we had a quake of a certain magnitude, everything else around it is going to be crumbled--the roads, the freeways.  There may not be any access to that hospital.”  And not withstanding the fact that we want to protect the in-patients and the facilities and critical services of the facility, and, obviously, we wanted it to remain standing, but can we achieve that?  And I don’t know that we can.  I’m just kind of tossing this out as a thought because I’m just curious as to whether or not we might be asking these hospitals to comply to an unreasonably high standard.

And if I’m wrong, I’m wrong.  And let me know, but again, if we’re looking at trying to whittle away at this potential cost, that might be one area where we could have some savings.  And not that I’m proposing that we look at lesser safety standards in order to cut the eventual cost of this.  That’s kind of like my rational is are we working toward a reasonable standard here for these hospitals to comply?

MR. SCHAEFER:  The standards are set essentially by the site that the hospital sits on.  They’re allowed to look at their specific site and determine what the level of risk is, the potential for a certain size earthquake, and then use that in their calculations.  As to whether or not it’s unreasonable, my experience in looking at the data from Northridge would tell me that no, we know precisely what it takes to make a building stand up.  They did it, they have been doing it since 1973.  The pre-‘73 buildings were essentially trashed by Northridge, and that tells me there’s a very clear point of demarcation, and we’re absolutely able to meet that.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Okay, on another--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Dr. Gallegos, can I just ask a clarifying question, because you might have understood what he said was the standard, but I didn’t have a clue what you meant.  So let’s try it in English or something--no, not in engineering language, it just doesn’t work with me.  I’m sorry.  Let’s try this again.  Because you said 10 percent, I was gone.  Can we be more descriptive or somehow, or give me an example?  Or am I just thoroughly not understanding this?

DR. WARDIGAR:  It’s not a “one-shoe-fits-all,” that is it’s being billed to, as Dr. Gallegos was asking, are you building it all to an 8.0 Richter?  Instead, you look at the earthquake potential and the kind of forces in the area in which the building is going to be built.  If it’s going to be built in a very critical area where there’s been a lot of seismic activity with high Richter numbers and so forth, this is a layman’s explanation, that building is going to have a lot more steel and it’s going to have to be a lot beefier.  If it’s built in an area that’s Zone 3 with a force ___(inaudible)_____, the engineer takes that into consideration and designs the building for that zone.  

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Okay, a couple of other questions on a different issue.  In Mr. Dauner’s testimony earlier, his concern was as hospitals divulge particular information about their economic status and other things, there might be a potential there for competing hospitals to get that, and his concern was, could OSHPD maintain confidentiality of that information?  And my question to you is could you first off?

DR. WARDIGAR:  We would need legislative authority to do that.  The information that comes to us is generally open to the Freedom of Information Act and are generally public documents.  We would need some specific legislative authority.  We ask counsel about that.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Okay, now, if you were able to do that--and now I’m addressing the comments that Mr. Harrison made about the over supply of hospitals in certain areas--if you were to be able to comply with keeping the information on the hospitals confidential, how would we be able to correct for any potential over- or under-capacity that could result from hospitals rebuilding?  Or would you be able to do that internally as you reviewed the plans and the proposals or be able to go back to a hospital and say, “You know, your rebuild is sound seismically, but we think you’re overbuilding for your market.”

DR. WARDIGAR:  Obviously, we can’t intrude too much on the free marketplace, but there is one specific area where the law gives us the authority to be helpful.  And that is the law allows, Mr. Schaefer, allows our office to grant extensions where there will be insufficient hospital beds and hospital care in an area.  And we have the capacity to do those studies, and we’ve actually asked for some more staffing in that regard, and we’ve granted it.  We can look to see if there is a hospital which if it were out of service would--

MR. DAUNER:    (tape turned)  --beds is different than licensed or staffed beds.  Last week just in Orange County--and I was there yesterday--21 of 27 hospitals in the EMS system were on diversion.  Since about the second week in December, they have been totally inundated, and normally the lowest occupancy month is December.  That did not occur this year, and occupancy varies within a hospital.  Wednesday is the highest day of the week normally.  Saturday is the lowest day.  August is lower.  January, February and March are high.  And so you have to look at the entire year and those peaks and valleys.  And we’ve had a lot of pressure since the second week of December throughout the state, and because of pulmonary, respiratory flu.  Even we’ve noticed an increase, for some reason which we can’t understand, in cardiovascular admissions.  But it’s not a straight 365-day-a-year average of the utilization.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  No, Duane, I understand that.  But my question was more directed to whether or not there was a formal planning process or the capability for OSHPD to be able to insure that if a proposal came in, that they viewed for the market that that hospital was proposing to rebuild would create more oversupply of hospitals or hospital beds in that particular market.  And again just addressing my comments to Mr. Harrison’s testimony.

DR. WARDIGAR:  We’re not allowed to do that.  In the old days, you know, there was something called Certificate of Need in which our office actually did say whether or not there were too many or too few facilities in an area.  That Certificate of Need program ended in California in 1987.  It was felt to be too difficult to administer in many ways and that letting the marketplace adjust was probably, for better words, the best way.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Okay, thank you Doctor.  And Mr. Harrison, you were going to say.

MR. HARRISON:  I was just going to say it’s unlikely that, economically, that someone is going to build a hospital for a larger capacity when if it’s not realistically going to expect to use those beds.

CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  Okay.  Mr. Wayne.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Yeah, this is a point I want to follow up on.  Gentlemen from the Hospital Association, let’s assume that a survey occurred and it showed that a given hospital had some seismic problems and this was an accurate statement.  And the effect was to drive down the share price of that hospital because of that cost.  Why do you believe that the giving out of accurate information about the seismic risk would increase litigation?

MR. DAUNER:  Well, if you take a national company, and we have several national companies that own facilities, and shareholders around the entire nation, and if that information caused the stock of the entire company to go down, there may be some--

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Based on what?

MR. DAUNER:  Based on the fact that information was released that was confidential to that organization.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  But if it’s accurate information which really tells the public, you know this is how you have to base the value of the stock because there is some risk of this company, why do you think that would create litigation?

MR. DAUNER:  Well, I believe that if it’s released prematurely and

it would be classified as a trade secret until that organization wanted to release it, that’s where you’d end up with the problem.  They’re going to have to deal with it one way or the other.  And the question is should it all be out January 1, 2001, at the end of January, or should that organization release it as they release their plans on an institution-by-institution basis to correct it because they may close?  Let’s say if a company has 15 hospitals, they may close two of them entirely so there is no liability, and there shouldn’t even be concern about the fact that two of those hospitals are not compliant.

So you can get misleading information which may affect the value of the stock held by shareholders which would be ultimately inaccurate if the company intended to close those institutions and not even keep them open past 2007.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Of course, if you do this survey and you realize there’s information that might depress a stock, and it’s not disclosed and people buy the higher level and then the information is disclosed, they take a bath, because the information was not disclosed.


CHAIRMAN GALLEGOS:  The sensitivity is over the way that the information is handled.  If it’s just like any event that affects a company whether it’s a public company or a company that has tax-exempt bonds outstanding.  If the information is not accessible to the whole market at the same time, then that creates an issue.  And the way to avoid having information flow unevenly and cause a problem is to control the confidentiality of that information.


CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Assemblywoman Thomson.


ASSEMBLYWOMAN HELEN THOMSON:  I just wanted to ask if the regional health planning councils that were also in the good old-fashioned day, if that kind of idea was reinstated in combination with something having to do with how these repairs are funded, if that would help at all?


DR. WARDIGAR:  Ms. Thomson may have directed that question to me.  Although I’d sure like to hear what Duane says too, and this is just kind of a personal response.  I think reviving the HSAs, they had their history, and I think they wouldn’t be resurrected.

There is something that is of great interest, however, that has some relationships to that.  All of the non-profit hospitals, most of the non-profit hospitals--it excludes the small ones--must report on their community benefit contributions and do that in cooperation with the community and submit reports on their community benefit contributions.  And there is a way, in a sense of seeing how a non-profit community hospital sees itself and its contributions to the community which provides some documentation.  It’s not the old style planning which also involves Certificate of Need and the state taking a rather direct role.

But I think this kind of information about what the non-profit hospitals are doing, and the fact that they plan in cooperation with the community and submit reports on it, provides information that is very helpful for planning purposes in the community.  The information is available to all in the community; in fact, all in the community are supposed to have taken part in the process.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Any further questions from the members?

Thank you so much.  This panel lasted two hours.  But I think we had very interesting questions, and I thank you all for being here.

The second panel is the perspective of individual hospitals, and I would ask Mr. David Yarbrough and Mr. Daniel Adams to please come up.  I am determined to end this hearing at 5 o’clock which means that in 45 minutes, I have to do three panels.  So I’m going to ask the individual hospitals to be extremely brief, because frankly, I think that this panel has done a very good job of identifying your problems.  So Mr. Yarbrough we can just sit around the table, if you like.

Is there something that the first panel has not said to state your case?

MR. DAVID YARBROUGH:  Very little.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  I would expect that you would very briefly summarize your testimony.

MR. YARBROUGH:  I would be happy to be very brief.  My name is David Yarbrough, and I’m the CEO, the CFO, and the Chief Nursing Officer--I am the administrative team of a small, rural, county facility in Northern California, Weaverville in Trinity County.  We are a frontier hospital.  We are a sole community provider hospital.  We are a disproportionate share hospital.  We have everything that we can get to try to give us every dime that we can possibly get so that we can stay open on a consistent basis.

The concerns, I think, have been stated out very well for us right now, all things being equal.  We are one of the two hospitals in the State of California that is a rural hospital that is two-story.  So the exceptions that they were talking about earlier are not going to apply to me.  What we are looking at is our plan of compliance will be that acute care services that our existing facility will have to cease according to the current guidelines in 2008.  We are moving forward with our countywide strategic planning community to come up with alternatives because we are 46 miles from the nearest hospital, which is Redding.  And we can’t get there all the time during the year because of the mountain pass between us.  And there is no other access where we are.  So my concerns are certainly about my hospital, about how we’re going to find revenues that are necessary to rebuild.  But I’m also concerned about the impact on our referring hospitals in Redding because we’ve been very conservative in the north state.  And Redding Medical Center, and Mercy Medical Center have both made it very clear to our Congressman Wally Herger that the survival of the rurals is very important to them as well because if the rurals do not survive, there’s not enough bed space in Redding to accommodate what needs to be done.  

And the only other thing I would like to say is there is a really big difference between a global perspective and a systemwide basis and daily operational issues.  Certainly, there is money spent every year statewide.  A lot of that is about program obsolesce.  A lot of that is about remodels that must happen in order for you to just accommodate a new service or change out-of-service so that you can continue to offer it to your communities.  The seismic retrofit issues are new.  We didn’t know how bad it was going to be for me to do full compliance.  We’re looking at $12 million to $16 million on a building that was built in the 1950s primarily.  And when I’m done, what I have is a very inefficient and old building.  It makes no sense to retrofit it.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you so much, Mr. Yarbrough.

Mr. Adams.

MR. DANIEL ADAMS:  I’m pleased to be here.  I live in a seismically challenged community of Whittier, California, and in my career of 32 years in healthcare administration, I’ve only worked in two communities.  Whittier is one, and Northridge is the other.  It seems that it follows me wherever I go.

I’d like to, if you don’t mind, so that we don’t cover the same territory, cover the area that a question was asked, what’s been done since 1994 in terms of healthcare?  And I will address for my organization.  When the rules were published in 1997, we then convened a group strategically to look at what we needed to do to serve our community.  Because as we have seen over the past six year, six hospitals have closed their doors and gone out of business.  And that means that for those financial reasons, those patients have migrated towards our hospital.  And we know that we have other hospitals still existing in our area which are financially challenged and may not survive through the loss of revenues, through the balanced budget amendment, through various cuts that occur.

I know that in 1987 for Presbyterian Hospital, that we had buildings that were challenged during the Whittier earthquake.  And you can take your Zone 3 and Zone 4, and I can take you to a community that was devastated in 1987, and I can show you that the hospital only suffered $50,000 worth of cosmetic repairs.  So I don’t know that we can by zones say exactly what’s going to happen.  We learn new terminology with liquefaction, and thrust faults, and I have no idea in any magnitude earthquake what will occur in my organization.  What I do know is that having worked in two organizations that has been part of an earthquake, I know I want to be ready, and I know I want to have safe places for the patients, for the employees and for the community that needs us at that time. 

So in 1994, 1997, we started our planning.  We’ve gone through that.  We’ve have three buildings that do not meet the code.  We engaged professional engineers, and we found that our original building of 1959, our building of 1967, and our building of 1971 after review, we could probably retrofit them, but it would be less costly to replace them.  Unfortunately, all of those building house critical care, coronary care, intensive care, surgery, radiology, all of the critical services.  So that’s the most expensive to replace.

We then engaged from planners to the architects, from the architects we now are working with a contractor, and we have preliminary numbers that our replacement will be somewhere in the neighborhood of $130 million.  Having had the opportunity to testify before you, Senator Escutia, you always ask, “Well, then what do the numbers really mean?”  And I will tell you that I can sit here today and tell you that financing $130 million is almost impossible for the hospital.  But if Mr. Harrison can find me a way of getting that financed, it will add to every patient in the hospital, assuming that we have 80 percent occupancy which is what we are predicting, that it will add every day $131 to the cost of patient care.

Now, I’m not going to get any additional moneys from Medicare.  I’m not going to get it from Medical.  I’m not going to get it from the managed care.  That just took me up to about 72 percent of my total population.  For a hospital that in this past year we just talked about community benefits that supplied $4.7 million of care in outreach to the community.  That isn’t bad debts, that’s $4.7 million where we went out with our residency from USC, and we aggressively approached our community to try to improve the health status.  It says those kinds of programs are probably going to have to be cut back.  And, in fact, I probably can’t be a teaching hospital any longer and have 30 family practice residents, ten of whom graduate every year, and go out into various communities, maybe even up into the hinterlands, and serve people that live up there.  

So I look at this as a challenge between the healthcare administration and for all of you to make sense out of this.  What does  the delay of five years mean?  What it means to me is that I can squeeze everything that I have to do into the eight years.  But it’s going to cost me additional money to do that.  So that grace of that five years is going to give me some time to sensibly move programs so that I don’t close anything down, and then have to try to reopen it up.

It also means that maybe I’m going to have a chance to bid it and bid it in a more cost-effective way and do some planning because I don’t know how healthcare is really going to be delivered in the coming decades.  But whatever we do, we’d like to do it right because if I spend $130 million, I’ve got an obligation to do it right.

Thank you very much.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Mr. Adams.  Any questions from the members?  Thank you very much individuals from the hospitals, and we shall definitely be working with you to try and figure out something that is fair and equitable.

Our next presenter is Beth Capell who will bring forth consumer/labor perspectives.  Beth, if you can summarize as quickly as possible, I’d greatly appreciate it.

MS. BETH CAPELL:  Thank you, Madame Chair.  We appreciate working with your staff on this issue, and appreciate the opportunity to talk today.  I’m speaking on behalf of Health Access California and on behalf of the Service Employees International Union which represents about 100,000 healthcare workers here in California.  Like Dr. Wardigar, well, I didn’t have quite his experience, but I remember well after Loma Prieta speaking with workers at Watsonville who had the pride of being able to continue to provide care after that earthquake.  And equally, the dismay that workers had after the earthquake in Northridge, workers that I talked with in Santa Monica at the--how terribly difficult it was to provide even minimally safe care to the patients who were in those hospitals over night.  So, although I didn’t have the hands-on experience of being in a command center, it is clearly with me the need to do this as we move forward and have hospitals that are safe for patients and for workers.

As we look at the huge expenditures that we are talking about hospitals embarking upon, we are already--and a number of the members of this committee have alluded to it--looking at what kind of priorities we’re going to set.  Because we’re not only building hospitals for the moment of the earthquake, but we are investing in the infrastructure that will serve us for decades to come.  And as we evaluate that, we think that concerning factors of seismic risk is appropriate.  We also ask that as we move forward on this, that we evaluate those things that we normally look at when we invest in hospitals.  And that is what degree of service do they provide to the community, and very specifically, what kind of charity care do they provide.  And we think that that’s an important threshold.  We, for example, would suggest the hospital that is in a seismically risky area that provides a very substantial share of care to the uninsured, should receive greater consideration than one that doesn’t meet those criteria because of the on-going value to the community.

And we also, as we move forward, want to be clear that when we speak of service to the community, we do wish to consider service to the uninsured that things--and Dr. Gallegos held a hearing in Los Angeles some time ago about where the issues of charity care versus bad debt were discussed at some length.  And when you look at, for example, bad debt, that means that individuals who are classified as bad debt have their wages garnished, and are pursued by collection agencies.  It is not the same thing as charity care in our view.  And we wish as we set these priorities to keep that in mind.

Similarly, the community benefit analysis which the Office of Statewide Health Planning compiles, and does no more than compile, we think that if we are going to use these for any purpose, we need to be careful about them.  That individual hospitals are allowed to define their community in the way that they choose, which allows for redlining, for example.  That individual hospitals are allowed to define what constitutes community benefit so that a cholesterol screening clinic in front of Nordstrom’s can count the same as immunizing uninsured children.  So we just need, as we move forward, to be skeptical, as I hear the members of this committee already being skeptical about what constitutes real care.

I would also suggest--and we hope that there will be more examination of this this year--that as we look at the standards of the California Health Facilities Financing Authority already uses, that perhaps when they were originally created that a hospital that took Medicare provided a distinguish service to the community.  That’s no longer true.  Virtually every hospital meets that standard.  We would also suggest that accepting Medical may or may not be a service and over time it varies whether that actually constitutes a service.  In some cases, we observe behavior which makes us suspect that Medical rates are above market for commercial rates.  And that is, for example, in labor and delivery, when we see hospitals advertising for Medical patients, we have a suspicion that they think they’re making money off it.  So we would encourage a degree of skepticism about what constitutes service to the community as we move forward.

Finally, as we look at these issues, sorry to say that we are hearing about more violations of patient dumping law than we’ve heard about in many years.  That there seems to be a resurgence of this issue.  And then that’s true for hospitals.  I will give a specific example.  The hospital in Sonoma County that was formally a county hospital, that’s now owned by a large alleged non-profit chain.  Sutter was recently charged with substantial violations of federal law for patient dumping and was triaging on the basis of race and homelessness and whether people were farm workers or not.  And so we would encourage that we look at those sorts of issues as well when we’re deciding priorities for hospitals.  

And I think that concludes my testimony.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you very much.  It was very, very interesting testimony, Ms. Capell.  Any questions from the members?

I’ve very interested in, perhaps later, Ms. Capell, to discuss with you what is your basis for certain assertions that you have made.

MS. CAPELL:  Always happy to, Madame Chair.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Patient dumping and the issue of hospitals doing pretty aggressive advertising for mothers to deliver in their hospitals and get the Medical reimbursement.  I am under the impression that some of this Medical reimbursement, not that this is a discussion to be had in this forum, but some of these reimbursements don’t really cover their cost.

MS. CAPELL:  What we would encourage is that as we move forward that any entity that’s going to be using--we now say that a hospital takes Medical, we assume it’s below market.  We’re not clear that is necessarily always the case depending on the procedure, and depending on the market.  Unfortunately, or fortunately, whatever, commercial rates are sufficiently low in California than in some instances Medical may or may not be.  We’re encouraged and that can change over time.  In the ten or 15 years I’ve been working on this issue, it has changed over those years.  We would encourage the capacity of whatever agency it is, whether it’s California Health Facilities Financing Agency, or any agency that has to evaluate whether hospitals truly providing a service to the community to have the ability to evaluate that.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  And ultimately, those type of evaluation factors, I think, is what Chairman Gallegos and others have been getting at in terms of--obviously, we don’t have in the best case scenario.  If we had all the money in the world, we would gladly help out everybody.  Unfortunately, we have to target our assistance.  And how do we get to the point of targeting our assistance is really the unanswered question here.  Because eventually, you know, you help out Peter, but then Paul says, “Well, what about me.”

MS. CAPELL:  Absolutely.  And we have heard suggested the notion of prioritizing or cueing rather than simple saying "no" to folks.  I would think that that might be earlier to understand that there were criteria and that some hospitals.  So that, for example, if a hospital said, “Well, look.  We think it’s the right thing to take care of the uninsured.  We want to do more of that, and we’re in a seismically risky area.  Let’s sit down and think about this.  Whether this is a right thing to do to do more of that, and also, oh, good, that moves us up the cue for the bonds we need to do the seismic retrofit.”  Those are things that we think are worth thinking about.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Okay, thank you so much.  I think that’s a very nice segway to our next panel which will deal with proposed remedies.  Sumi Sousa and Roger Richter.  And Ms. Sousa is a director of the California Healthcare Facilities Financing Authority which I think is under the treasurers office.  And I think they are the ones that probably have the authority to float some of these bonds.  Welcome, Ms. Sousa.

MS. SUMI SOUSA:  Thank you.  I actually am passing around just a brief overview of what the Health Facilities Financing Authority does.  But good afternoon, and thank you committee members for allowing us to come forward and talk to you a little bit about what the Health Facilities Financing Authority does.  I know that you’re pressed for time, so I’m just going to talk very briefly about three main issues.  Just give you a general overview of what the Authority does because I think a lot of folks aren’t familiar with it.  Number two, talk about sort of the current financing tools that are available through the Authority--two hospitals right now--and then lastly, about our role in assisting hospitals and implementing SB 1953.

As you’ll see from your overview, essentially CHFFA was created in 1979 by the Legislature in order to assist public and non-profit health facilities to get access to capital at much cheaper rates.  So I think the important point to note is that we are not the source of capital itself but rather a conduit to capital at much more favorable rates than folks would get on the market.  So again it is chaired by the treasurer, and we have been very active in terms of issuance.  We’ve issued $13.5 billion.  We’ve got about $6 billion outstanding right now.  Much of that is to the large hospital systems who are fairly __________ borrowers and come to the Authority fairly regularly.

Again, in terms of the eligible participants--public hospitals, non-profit hospitals, non-profit health facilities--it’s fairly broadly defined within the statute, but essentially for what you’re concerned about is the general acute-care hospitals, and so for our purposes we can only deal with those folks who are non-profit or public hospitals.  

In terms of what the bonds can be used for, essentially they’re largely capital, construction remodeling, acquisition for buildings and equipment.  We can do refinancings for debt, reimbursement of prior expenditures, some feasible studies, but largely they are capital oriented.  In terms of our funding criteria, who comes to us?  Essentially in a statute, you have to have a minimum A rating from one of the major credit rating agencies.  So essentially, we’re seeing fairly strong credits coming before the Authority.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Excuse me.  By that you mean fairly big hospitals?

MS. SOUSA:  Yes.  If you look at who our largest borrowers are, they tend to be the large systems, Sutter, Catholic Healthcare West, Kaiser, those sort of folks because they are financially strong.  However, there are certain stand-alones, for example, Cedar Sinai which has a higher rating right now than Catholic Healthcare West does.  So there are some exceptions to that, but there are the large health systems that are coming to us.

So that, I think, is probably the essential question, and I know that Mark had talked a little bit about that in terms of sort of the decline in the financial stability of the health systems right now that’s making our minimum rating a little bit more difficult in terms of who gets access to capital.  And certainly for those unrated facilities which are community hospitals, they have a harder time coming before us unless they’re coming through a pooled loan program.

And, in fact, let me talk a little bit about the type of financings that we’re doing.  We’re doing kind of stand-alone bond issues, we’re doing pooled bond issues which we work very closely with the Cal Mortgage Program on which essentially will decrease the cost of issuance, plus it allows unrated facilities to get the full faith and credit of the State of California as enhancement.  We do equipment-only financing, and we also have a direct loan program for facilities with under $10 million in revenues also.

Essentially, I think that you wanted us to focus a little bit on the role of what CHFFA should be doing under the provisions of SB 1953.  And as I’d kind of talked to you a little bit about before, since we aren’t the source of capital, we essentially have or are statutorily required to insure that our borrowers can repay their debts.  That is the essential problem with the legislation.  Since hospitals are undergoing a tremendous amount of financial strain, there are several hospitals that simply won’t even be coming to our door because they don’t believe that they have any ability to repay that kind of debt, and Mark had talked about sort of the ratio of downgrades to upgrades.  And that is certainly a problem for our clients and for our borrowers.

I think what is important, and I think what the treasurer has asked us to impart to you, is that we really believe that we can’t provide you--really that the Legislature and the Governor need to have a better understanding of the true price tag that’s associated with seismic costs.  There’s a lot of uncertainty, a lot of squishiness with the figures, and there are a lot of unknown determinants.  How many hospitals really want to rebuild?  How many will convert, how many will merge, how many will really make some very different decisions based upon what they believe their seismic bill is?

And I think until you have a true sense of that, it’s going to be very difficult for you to come up with some smart policy initiatives in regards to that.  I think to that end the treasurer has asked the Financing Authority essentially to come up with some type of a survey of the hospitals to ask them really particularly, because it is fairly close to what the reporting deadline is, to come up and give us a better sense of what they think that their seismic--what their plans are in terms of rebuilding what they think their actual seismic liability will be.

And I know there is some hesitation on the part of hospitals to provide that.  I would say that number one, that many hospitals already know what that is.  Number two, the deadline is fast approaching, and if they don’t know now, they’re going to be in trouble.  Number three, since we’re trying to assist hospitals in coming up with some creative financing tools, it’s certainly within their interest to be helpful in this regard.  We’re not trying to use it to pit hospitals against one another, but rather we’re trying to use it to come up with some access to capital.  And for you to be able to make the appropriate policy decision really, I think, is dependent upon that.

So to that end, the treasurer has asked the Authority to come up with that.  We will be reporting to the Legislature in terms of a time line.  I think it’s going to be difficult because we’re very dependent upon what hospitals tell us, but we would like to come back to you after we’ve done that survey and provide you with not only some information, but also some recommendations as to how we think we can be helpful in that regard.

I think lastly, we just wanted to say to the Legislature that we’re certainly open.  We think that we will play an important role in terms of helping finance hospitals, but what we want to do is--we want to be able to help you make the right decisions in regards to who’s going to rebuild, how are they going to rebuild, how much access to capital will you have.  You know, we’re not capped.  Unlike the Cal Mortgage Program which essentially is capped at like $3 billion, the Health Facilities Financing Authority does not have a cap in terms of the amount of financing that it can do.  Clearly, the check on that is how much can hospitals repay?  It is debt.  It’s not grant, it’s not free money.

But to the extent that there is some sort of a comprehensive program to assist hospitals in that, we believe that we would be an important portion of that along with local issuers.  There’s also the California Statewide Community Development Authority which is another statewide issuer.  So we believe that together, all of those portions will help put together a more comprehensive kind of financing structure.  But again, we sort of believe that we really need to have a better sense of what that real problem is.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Ms. Sousa, for your very, very brief, but incredibly just full of, information.  Mr. Wayne.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  I’m trying to list a real quick question.  In determining whether to make a loan to a hospital or a group of hospitals, do you consider whether that hospital is needed in the community given the presence of other hospitals?

MS. SOUSA:  Well, I guess I’m going to give you an answer that kind of goes around that essentially.  Number one, what we do is as a part of our financial analysis that we would do of the deal, we have a responsibility to insure that that hospital has the ability to repay debt.  If their revenue base has been declining because of severe competition from neighboring hospitals, that would be a factor that we would bring to the Authority’s attention certainly.  And that could be factor in terms of whether to provide them financing or not.  I’m not going to say that that always is the case.  But essentially it can be a factor.  But as Mark had talked about earlier, the market in some way dictates too.  If they don’t have the financial reserves to cover that, then that financing isn’t going to work, and part of the factors will be how much competition they have essentially.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Let me rephrase the question.  If Trinity County Hospital, the only hospital in that part of the area, comes to you and says, “We need this money,” and in competition with that is the hospital in LA where they’re ten other hospitals in the same community.  If that hospital goes down, the other nine will absorb the population.  Can you weigh that as a factor?  Or do you simply look at the ability to payback?

MS. SOUSA:  It’s the latter, and the reason why is because there’s not a limited allocation that we give out.  So every hospital stands on its own.  Essentially, there’s not a competition for tax-exempt debt between the two.  So for, in the case of Trinity, I think, it would be in its benefit on the financial analysis that we do because it is a stand-alone hospital, that’s the only one within its community that clearly affects it’s financial base which would be significant.  The other hospital that is in a neighborhood of ten other hospitals may have a very large endowment, there are a lot of other financial factors but it’s not competing with that Trinity hospital for tax-exempt debt.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Would you like to have the authority to consider other than the ability to repay _________ loan?

MS. SOUSA:  That’s not the only consideration.  We do have other considerations, for example.  And I have been remiss also in reminding--under our statute we have a minimum rating of A.  If you go below A, we have the authority to issue that debt, but there are several criteria that you need to be able to follow under that.  One of those is that you would budget 5 percent for the life of the bond.  Essentially, 5 percent of your budget would go to uncompensated care.  Now, most of the hospitals that we’ve done essentially have been A rated, so we’ve never had to consider that.  But that is certainly one of the things within our statute that we have the ability to do right now.

ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE:  Thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you very much, Mr. Wayne.

Mr. Steinberg.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER DARRELL STEINBERG:  Thank you very much, Madame Chair.  Just if you could elaborate briefly and sort of lay out for us the logistics of and timetable about how we could put together a plan that matches the need versus the available revenue.  What are we talking about.  We know that the seismic assessment is due January 1 of 2001.  What do we then need to do over the course of the next year to get ready to make the decisions then and to figure out where and how we fill in the gaps?

MS. SOUSA:  Well, I think that’s a tough question to answer because essentially you need to know how much you really need to come up with.  And, I mean, I really think you need to know how much you need to come up with, how much hospitals are planning--I mean, how much you need to come up with is different from how much hospitals are intending to spend.  My assumption is that there are several hospitals out there that have the ability to issue this type of debt or actually to incur this type of debt and to be able to pay it.  We’ve done some hospitals already that have been very forward-thinking hospitals and have had an ability to already deal with some of their seismic problem.  Most of those hospitals aren’t in that kind of situation, though.

I think that every hospital will be different.  But, I think, I can’t really answer it until I think you know a better sense of what the true scope of the problem is and where those hospitals are, what types of hospitals.  There’s just a vast diversity in terms of some hospitals’ ability to pay and other hospitals, I believe, not.  But the short answer would be that I think you have to do something fairly--well, since most people will probably be borrowing money, it's going to be over time.  And it’s not that you have to do something today, but essentially most of those hospitals, I think as Duane had talked about, most of those hospitals do need to know or do need to start their work right away.

And so to the extent that they’re starting to go to people like Mark and saying, “I’m going to need to borrow $75 million or $100 million,” I think there needs to be some sense of what the options will be out there for them.  Because that will make a very big different as to whether they’re going to go to Mark or whether they’re going to say, “I just simply can’t afford it.”

ASSEMBLYMEMBER STEINBERG:  Okay, thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Mr. Steinberg.  Any further questions from the members.  Ms. Thomson.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER THOMSON:  Just very briefly, you give credit for uncompensated care?

MS. SOUSA:  Yes and no.  Essentially, if you were less than A, essentially, Moody’s rated you a triple B like Catholic Healthcare West is right now.  If Catholic Healthcare West came into my door tomorrow and said, “I need $475 million for x, y, and z projects,” essentially because they are less than A, I would have to go through several criteria which is how many folks on Medi-Cal do you take?  Give me your physicians list.  Do you make your care available to anybody regardless of ability to pay, and is 5 percent of your budget targeted towards uncompensated care?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER THOMSON:  Do you consider the issues that were raised by Mr. Yarbrough, their sole provider in rural area, would have no other alternatives?

MS. SOUSA:  Absolutely.  That’s because that’s usually part of our financial analysis that we do.  We have to establish the financial strength of a hospital.  And that has to do with what their service area is, what their payer mix is, where the diversity of their revenues.  It’s all of those things.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER THOMSON:  But in the future consideration, there could be, if it were the will of the Legislature, some points, if you will, for those criteria--points of lending money.

MS. SOUSA:  Sure.  The only think I would say is that we are a conduit.  There are investors essentially, and so our number one priority in our statute anyway, our number one charge is to insure the financial security of that deal.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER THOMSON:  If the state backs the deal?  Then what?

MS. SOUSA:  Well, but that’s the importance of the Cal Mortgage program essentially is that you’ve got $3 billion in credit enhancement essentially that you’d be able to provide.  Whether $3 billion is enough or not is another issue.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER THOMSON:  Thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Ms. Sousa, with regard to those hospitals that have the A rating, just super, super, rating.  Do you also go through the rigor of analyzing that criteria that Ms. Thomson identified?

MS. SOUSA:  We do.  I mean, it’s a little bit different.  Clearly, our financial analyses were a lot more--I mean our Authority is a lot more comfortable with a double A or a triple A rated deal than we are with a triple B rated deal.  I would say that in every analysis that we do, we are asking them for what their service area is, for what their payer mix is, for what their level of uncompensated care is.  We get varying responses of that.  Some people tell us like what the discount that they take on Medi-Cal is.  Some people actually just tell us right out what their level of uncompensated care is.  But that is something that the Authority takes very seriously.  How much of a factor that becomes, I think, varies, depends upon each hospital and each deal essentially.  But it is a factor.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  It is a factor, but is it weighted?

MS. SOUSA:  I think it’s hard to say what’s weighted because it’s a very subject picture as to what we think is the financial strength overall of the hospital.  But if you’re asking if a money-losing hospital with inadequate debt-service coverage, meaning not as strong as a more challenged ability to repay the debt than say another stronger facility, came in to us and had a very high rate of uncompensated care, but did not show adequate ability to repay the debt, if what you’re asking is would we still do the deal?  The answer would probably be no, and the reason why is they can’t show they can repay the debt.  It doesn’t matter in some way what their level of uncompensated care is.  Because essentially we’re just the conduit issuer.  We’re allowing--

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  I know you’re the conduit issuer, I know that you’re also financed from fees charged from your participating facilities.  I know there no general fund dollars at risk here.  However, this deal, isn’t it backed by the Full _______ Credit?

MS. SOUSA:  No, that would be a Cal Mortgage insured deal.  Yeah.  That’s the whole point, we have the responsibility to investors essentially.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  All right, thank you so much, Ms. Sousa.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  Ms. Escutia, may I ask a question here?

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Yes, Ms. Aroner.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  I want to be sure I understand something because it’s my understanding that CHFA and Cal Mortgage have different standards in regards to community charge and those kinds of things.  And I just want to be sure I understand that in regards to their reporting responsibilities and certifying and all of that kind of thing.  Can you explain that to us?

MS. SOUSA:  Yeah, in fact, Dr. Wardiger’s here too.  He could probably explain to you.  I think that the differentiation that you’re thinking about is what the provisions are under the Torres bill in regards to community benefit by the hospital and what CHAFFA is required to do under our statute.  But essentially it’s pretty simple.  For all of our borrowers before we can close the deal, essentially, they have to provide us a physicians list that tells us all their physicians, which ones take Medi-Cal.  They have to let us know that they have posted a sign or made some sort of--essentially, it’s usually a sign in their waiting room that says, “We provide service to everyone regardless of their ability to pay.”  We have to see whether they have Medi-Cal contracts or not.  And I think that’s what Beth was talking about a little bit earlier was that whether Medical matters as much anymore.  That’s just what our statute says right now.  Does it need some updating?  Probably.  But essentially those are the type of things that we’re looking for and then again as I told you before, if you’re less than A, there would be a different level of what the community standard would be.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  What is Cal Mortgage?  What is a requester of dollars from Cal Mortgage have to say about all of those, anything?

MS. SOUSA:  Well, theirs is a little bit different.  I should let Dr. Wardigar talk.

DR. WARDIGAR:  In the case of CHFFA when they issue bonds, they are very careful.  They get these big ones, Kaiser, and so forth issuing bonds.  And if those large organizations, if the hospital failed, the investors would be left unpaid.  Cal Mortgage is different.  It does guarantee the bonds with the full phase and credit of the state, and we have a reserve fund of $150 million.  But as was pointed out, the cap is $3 billion, the reserves because we’ve never used general fund dollars, and I think the legislators would be unhappy if we used general fund dollars, the reserve is only $150 million.  As a consequence, we can’t take large deals.  And we deliberately provide loan insurance to small facilities, small hospitals and clinics who would otherwise never have access to the capital markets because they’re just too small.  Sometimes they’re too small to issue bonds.  So the hospital from Trinity--we may have a Cal Mortgage guarantee on them, I’m not sure.  But they would only be able to issue bonds if we put a Cal Mortgage guarantee on it and said these bonds are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the State of California.  Then they get a very good rate ,and they can sell the bonds.

We have a priority system.  We publish a state plan every two years and show our priorities.  And basically the priority is heavily oriented in the direction of smaller facilities, sole providers, ones that are serving the under-served and those that are serving uninsured.  But even we have to be sure that the hospital can repay its debt.  Otherwise the general fund will be stuck.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ARONER:  But what is your standard for proof, that is what I’m kind of getting at, in regards to community care and those kinds of things.  How does somebody have to prove to you that they are--let’s say you’ve decided the priority is uncompensated care?  How do they have to prove that to you?  In the same way they prove it to CHFFA or do you have a lessor standard?  That’s what I’m getting at.

DR. WARDIGAR:  We probably use the same.  You know all hospitals, and I’ll just talk about hospitals now, must report their financial information to the Office of Statewide Health Planning.  It’s a separate division, but they report.  So we have very complete information from all hospitals on bad debt, charity care, how much Medi-Cal, how much Medicare and so forth, so we get a pretty good sense of what their patient care is like, but we can also see what community they’re in.  If they’re a sole provider, if the next hospital is 40 miles away, we can look at all of those factors and do.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you very much, Ms. Aroner.  Thank you, Dr. Wardigar.

Our next and final presenter will be Mr. Roger Richter, Senior V-P for Professional Services, California Healthcare Association.

MR. ROGER RICHTER:  Thank you, Madame Chair, Mr. Chair, and committee members.  I will quickly go through four recommendations we have for legislation for this coming session.

The first two I want to elaborate a little bit and that is the focus on preventing hospitals from making the wrong management decision.  In other words, SB 1953 was based on the wrong premise.  It was and if you look at the legislation or even go back to the _______________ report that Mr. Schaefer referenced, it talks about substantial compliance by 2030.  The thinking was that you could retrofit a hospital, especially those that were built in the 60s, early 70s, that you could retrofit this hospital into substantial compliance.  And Mr. Dauner says that’s really impossible.  And those hospitals, even if they’re retrofitted by 2008 have to be rebuilt.  So you have a double expenditure, a retrofit expenditure and then a new hospital expenditure for 2030.

And there’s reasons for this.  The reasons are first of all, pre-‘73 hospitals and the retrofitting you’re doing, you’re running into asbestos abatement which is a major expense and problem in a hospital.  And you can’t close down the hospital and do the entire hospital.  It has to be done piecemeal which adds to the cost.  Another issue is the California equivalent of the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Nationally, there is a 20 percent cap placed on projects, a vote for access compliance.  In California it’s 100 percent.  So in other words, if you’re retrofitting an area of a hospital, you have to bring that entire area up from that area to the egress path 100 percent of it up to the California Disabilities Act.  Now, doing that with a new facility that’s not to add additional expense, but it adds enormous expense to a retrofit.  So again, you’re going to have hospitals prefer to rebuild rather than retrofit.

The other issue is the number of qualified architects and engineers to work on these projects.  As a matter of fact, Mr. Schaefer mentioned about using a Method B which is an advanced analysis.  There are very few architects and engineers qualified to work on such an advanced analysis, and OSHPD will have to hire more additional staff to do peer review of those.  Runs into a major issue, not only for OSHPD but also for the hospital industry.  And we’ve been told that there’s a 25 percent increase already in the cost for professional designers to work on SB 1953.  So we have two recommendations related to that to assist.

One is to, if a hospital is going to rebuild rather than retrofit, that it be given a five-year extension from the 2008 date as Mr. Dauner requested.  The second is an issue that Assemblymember Wayne raised and that is are the different maps available for seismic zones?  Well, what can occur in SB 1953 allows for it is a site specific analysis, and what we’re recommending is if a site specific analysis is performed, and I’m oversimplifying this so if there’s any geo-technical engineers in the audience who will faint, I apologize because it’s much more complex.  But basically, if a site specific analysis is done, and it comes out to be on that site within the Zone 3 actually the equivalent of a Zone 2, we’re recommending that the zone structural components be delayed until 2030.  Because as Mr. Schaefer said, seismic Zone 3 and 4 are higher risk zones.  Within Zone 3 we do have some portions that are lower risk, and we think those should be treated differently.

The third, and again, what we recommend to our legislation is that a geo-technical engineer does the analysis.  It’s approved by the Division of Mines and Geology who works with OSHPD and that the Hospital Building Safety Board be the entity who then would grant the exception for those who fall into the equivalent of a seismic Zone 2.  We also think that the Hospital Building Safety Board would be a natural entity to have the authority to grant flexibility in other circumstances where something unforeseen happens that would cause a delay and the building safety board would consider that as an exception.

A third piece of legislation that we’re proposing relates to licensing flexibility.  One of the major costs in doing a retrofit is the phasing of the project.  Hospitals are required to have eight basic services at all times.  So if you shut down that service to do a retrofit or for asbestos abatement, you need to place that service in another location.  That location has to meet strict seismic and licensing requirement.  And what we are hopeful is that through legislation, OSHPD and DHS could work together to develop standards that would allow for a safe environment for employees and patients.  At the same time, take cost into consideration in these phasing of projects. 

And then the forth piece of legislation is what Mr. Dauner already touched upon, and Sumi, and that is to provide a chip on other’s access to the cost of SB 1953.  But again as we mentioned, this would be a confidential data that would only be available in the aggregate.  So those are our four recommendations.

CHAIRWOMAN ESCUTIA:  Thank you so much.  Any questions from the members?

Well, that brings our hearing to a close.  I would like to thank all the presenters for really giving us amazing thorough information.  Many of us were not here in 1973.  A lot of us were not here in 1994, but it’s incumbent upon us to come up with a solution that will be fair and that will take into consideration all the stakeholders.  So on behalf of all my colleagues and Chairman Gallegos, we look forward to working with you, and I thank you all for coming.  Members of the Assembly Health Committee, thank you so much for being just absolutely wonderful in coming to this hearing.  I thank very much your participation, and we obviously have our work cut out for ourselves.  Thank you so much.
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